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Directors’ Profile

EE LV

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 53, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years
of experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 33, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring
in Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr.
Shum has pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an
international accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Cai Xikun, aged 64, had over 41 years’ industrial experience
and experience in management and control of manufacturing
businesses. Mr. Cai began his career in the manufacturing
industry in Mainland China in the early 1970s on the opening
up of the Chinese economy. In the late 1980s Mr. Cai took
up duties at the top management level in Guangdong Wan
Jia Le LPG Equipment Company Limited, a large scale state-
owned enterprises in the Zhujiang Delta region that was one of
the front runners in the rapid expansion of the manufacturing
industry in the region. This was followed by his chairmanship
of Guangdong Yue Hai Dish Washing Machine Company
Limited, and his position of Deputy General Manager of
Guangdong Huabao Group Limited and General Manager of
Guangdong Huabao Air Conditioning Factory. Mr. Cai joined
the Group in 2003 when he was appointed Managing Director
of NewOcean Energy (Zhuhai) Company Limited.

Cen Ziniu, aged 48, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and has been involved in trading businesses in
Hong Kong and China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for
market development of the Group and overseas operations.
He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.
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Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 53, has been executive
director and head of the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas
operations since August 2003 and is now in charge of liquefied
petroleum gas operations in China and worldwide. Prior to
joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’ experience
in banking and management. He has been involved in the
financing and supervision of business projects in China since
the late 1980’'s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 49, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over
20 years experience in the investment and real estate field,
working with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and
China. Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in
charge of the Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.

Wang Jian, aged 32, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics and a
Master’s Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008,
Mr. Wang was engaged by a major bank in Mainland China
and worked in its banking business department.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 60, has been
independent non-executive director since August 2001.
Mr. Cheung is an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong
Kong Polytechnic) with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years of experience in account, finance
and investment banking profession specializing in equity/
debt fund raising, mergers and acquisition and corporate
restructuring before working with publicly listed companies
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undertaking corporate management, planning and strategies
development functions. Mr. Cheung is an independent non-
executive director of PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited,
Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited and Mobile
Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 53, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 56, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and
has over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field.
Since 1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position
in the top management level in banking sector in China, and
has been well connected in the finance and corporate sectors
both in China and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise includes public
listings, project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring
and merge and acquisition. He has taken part in a
considerable number of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises
and other major fund raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
July, 2006 and an independent non-executive director of EPI
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange)
from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2011.

In the year 2011, the Group attained an after tax profit of
approximately HK$300 million, a remarkable achievement with
a more than two fold profit increase. During this period, the
Group continued its business expansion with the Liquefied
Petroleum Gas (“LPG”) business successfully maintaining an
annual growth of about 20% to reach 1,450,000 tons of sales
for the year, setting a new milestone for our business.

Affected by serious sovereign debts in various countries,
global economy was perilously unstable in 2011 and business
environment was generally difficult. Despite this, the energy
market in Southern China has been least affected and the
performance of the Group’s LPG business continued to be
outstanding.. Southern China is a market characterized by a
strong and sustainable demand on energy products, given its
huge population and prosperous economy. With the continuing
rational and market oriented development of the energy market
in China, The Group is convinced about the development
potential in Southern China and has determined to explore
the market for further opportunities. In 2011, in addition to
intensifying its LPG downstream market expansion, the Group
has accelerated the construction of its oil products project. It
planned to start off in the near future another line of energy
business aiming to create additional source of revenue to the
Group and bring higher contributions to the shareholders.

Given the well established logistic infrastructure and sales
network of our LPG business built up during the past decade
and the support they will provide to the oil products business
in terms of resources and business synergy, | am confident
that the oil products business will be able to capture a
substantial market share within a few years and, at the same
time, the Group will rise from its position as the leading LPG
supplier to a major energy suppliers in the Southern China
market.
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TREmE
The Company recommends a final dividend of HK2.3 cents per AAFREBRE20MFERBAREFR2.3
share. B o
As we continue to strive forward in our business, | take this ERPEBTERTENRE 48 A
opportunity to express on behalf of the Board the appreciation 2 BERREFSUAEEZBETIAEBRE
we have to our staff for their dedication, hard work and their ZEMFE  BhH - RBEBLRBEEUERGE -

contribution to the success of the Group in the past years.

Shum Siu Hung E
Chairman Hu

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012 &% 201263 A16H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group achieved remarkable results with continual
business growth and more than two-fold profit increase in the
year 2011. Notwithstanding the unstable global economy and
generally difficult business environment, the energy market
in South China was least affected and performance of the
Group’s Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG”) business continued
to be outstanding. The energy market in Southern China which
is backed by the strong and sustainable demand on energy
products has promising development potential. In 2011, in
addition to further intensifying its LPG downstream market
expansion as planned, the Group accelerated the construction
of its oil products project aiming to start off another line of
energy business in the near future, and within a few years,
to promote the Group to become a major supplier of energy
products in Southern China.

1. Overall Performance

In 2011, the Group achieved total turnover of
approximately HK$10.117 billion, 19.3% growth as
compared with that of approximately HK$8.478 billion in
2010. Profit attributable to the owners of the Company
increased vastly by about 124.1% to approximately
HK$306 million in comparison with that of approximately
HK$137 million in 2010. No fund raising from the equity
market has been conducted in 2011, and the Company
had 1,305,853,374 weighted average number of ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2011 (1,305,853,374 shares
as at 31 December 2010); basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2011 was HK23.45 cents,
a leap of approximately 102.3% from that of HK11.59
cents for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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1.1

Segment Performance
LPG Business

LPG sales volume reached about 1,450,000 tons
in the year 2011, an increase of about 19% in
comparison with that of about 1,219,000 tons in the
year 2010. LPG turnover surged to approximately
HK$9.175 billion, a growth of about 26.9%
comparing with that of about HK$7.232 billion in
2010. LPG turnover went up at a higher rate than
the sales volume as a result of the general increase
of LPG market price in 2011. Accordingly, LPG
contribution rose to about 90.7% of the Group’s
total turnover (2010: 85.3%).

For an analysis of the Group’s gross margin, the
Management adopts a definition of gross profit
which takes into account the effect of the matching
financial transactions carried out for its overseas
purchases. We deem it more appropriate to set off
the net foreign exchange gain (generated from the
matching foreign exchange forward transactions that
are structured into the arrangement for payment for
these LPG purchases) from the cost of LPG goods
sold in arriving at the gross profit. As a matter of
fact, the sole purpose of entering into the structured
matching transactions is effectively to peg the
purchase price at a favourable exchange rate
(instead of the spot rate) for the Group to ultimately
change its available funds in its principle currency
(i.e. RMB) into foreign currency for settlement of the
overseas LPG purchases. The Management holds
the view that the cost of the Group’s overseas
purchase operations is the result of bargains made
simultaneously at both the international supply
market as well as the foreign exchange market. The
actual gross profit of the Group’s LPG business
therefore should equal the result of adding the gross
profit recorded in our books to the aggregate of
the foreign exchange gain achieved for its oversea
purchases.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #EsEREBHER AT
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Accordingly, the LPG gross profits for the years
2011 and 2010 are about HK$557 million and
HK$434 million respectively. The gross profit of
2011 well exceeded that of 2010 by approximately
HK$123 million, contributing to the significant
growth of the Group’s net profit in 2011.

Adopting the same calculation, the gross profit
margins of 2011 and 2010 were respectively about
6.1% and 6.0%. During the year, the Group has
taken appropriate measures (including entering
into the structured matching transactions) to tightly
control the costs incurred in every link in the price
chain. As a result, while the LPG market price has
gone up 8% - 10%, the 2011 gross profit margin
was successfully kept at the same level as that of
2010.

Income from the Lianxin Acquisition Project

Under the Framework Agreement signed on 21
October 2010, the Company agreed to acquire
Lianxin Energy Development Limited (“Lianxin”),
a business enterprise in China which owns and
operates a network of 17 autogas refueling stations
in Guangzhou by acquiring 5% of its share capital,
provision of a RMB580 million loan to the vendor
for the financial restructuring of Lianxin and exercise
of an option to acquire the remaining 95% share
capital. All the matters involved in the acquisition
of 5% of the registered capital of Lianxin and the
provision of a RMB580 million loan to the vendor for
the financial restructuring of Lianxin were completed
at the end of December 2010. Since the Group
only held a 5% stake in Lianxin for the period
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011, the
financial results of Lianxin were not consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011. However, the cash
interest income amounting to approximately HK$120
million related to the loan granted by the Group
under the Framework Agreement (being one of the
transactions under the Framework Agreement) has
been duly received and booked under the heading
“interest income from Entrusted Loan”. The income
contributed significantly to the profit growth of the
Group in 2011. Acquisition of the remaining 95%

stake in Lianxin was completed in January 2012.
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1.2

Electronics

In the year 2011, the trading volume of mobile
phones and electronics components (“Electronics”)
was reduced in line with the Group’s policy of
focusing on energy products development, and
accordingly its contribution reduced to about
9.3% of the Group’s total turnover (2010: 14.7%).
Electronics business continued to adopt the same
business model with Thailand as the major market.
Turnover diminished by about 24.4% to about
HK$942 million as compared with that of about
HK$1.245 billion in 2010. Gross profit decreased
from approximately HK$77 million in 2010 to
approximately HK$62 million in 2011 while gross
profit was slightly raised to about 6.6% from that of
about 6.2% in 2010.

Operating Costs
Financial Expenditure

The Group incurred financial expenditure of about
HK$144 million in the year 2011, an increase
of about 111.5% as compared with that of
about HK$68 million in 2010. This is the item of
expenditure that recorded the largest increase. In
this period, RMB interest rate went up substantially
and, for US$, although the basic rates (in general,
the LIBOR rate) stayed at a low level, interest
margins were widened. Interest rates actually
charged on the borrowings in both currencies were
therefore much higher in 2011 than those in 2010.
Other than the above, the Group had increased
substantially its actual borrowings. Additional RMB
working capital loans were raised to fund the RMB
account receivables generated from the increase in
domestic sales to the industrial customers, and a
US$42 million term loan was taken out in early 2011
to finance the acquisition of Lianxin. These financing
activities resulted in additional interests and bank
charges for the year.
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Sales and Distribution Expenses

The sales and distribution expenses of the Group,
which comprised mainly salary, transportation
cost, warehouse rental, demurrage charges and
the vehicles depreciations, amounted to about
HK$99 million in 2011, an increase of about
25.5% in comparison with that of about HK$79
million in 2010. Except demurrage charges, all
other expenses increased as more resources have
been deployed for effective expansion of industrial
customers base and the sales of bottled LPG.
During this year, the Management persistently
enhanced the logistic efficiency and applied the
cost savings in wholesaling to make up for the cost
increase in retailing. Accordingly, such costs bear
approximately the same percentage to the Group’s
total turnover for the two years of 2011 (about
0.98%) and 2010 (about 0.93%).

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2011
amounted to about HK$181 million, an increase
of about 32.6% when compared with that of
about HK$136 million for 2010. Amongst all the
administrative expenses items, staff salary and
depreciation recorded the most obvious increase.
Additional human resources were continually
deployed for execution of the expansion plan
and day to day operation. Massive pre-opening
expenses and professional charges were incurred
to accelerate the construction of the oil products
project, the addition of two berths at the Zhuhai
Terminal and strengthening the bottled LPG
development in Hong Kong and Macau. We
anticipate that further administrative expenses will
be incurred in 2012 when the Guangzhou autogas
refueling business is fully consolidated into the
Group.
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1.3 Conclusion 1.3 ¥FEs

Notwithstanding that the acquisition of Lianxin AW RSB B /201146
only brought about an interest income in 2011, FRes R ER T EMWA - i1 F
and that during the year financial expenditures, AW BER HEBERARITH
sales and distribution expenses and administrative BAMERANIL  BEEEE
expenses all recorded relatively high increment, the 2011 F et S HBIEATH
Group still achieved a net profit exceeding HK$300 aiF  BREKETEIERESES
million. The approach of tapping the end-users BAEE N IEREREE - I B 1IE#E 3|
market demonstrates its effectiveness in profitability SBEBE AW -

improvement and is now leading the Group into a
harvest cycle.

2. LPG Business 2. RILWEBKR
2.1 Market Situation 21 HGKR

Guangdong LPG Market BRERIATE
Unit: thousand tons

. 2010
2y T “
China total consumption FE2REF K= 24,920 100% 23,377 100%
Guangdong consumption EREATERE 5,190 21% 5,100 22%
Source: Guangdong Oil & Gas Association FE  EEAREE
Unit: thousand tons

2010

By T “
China total import FEAEOS 3,260 100% 3,196 100%
Guangdong import ERL@EEONS 2,340 72% 2,271 71%
China total export PEEEOE 1,140 100% 916 100%
Guangdong export BEREBRLOE 870 76% 729 80%
Source: Guangdong Oil & Gas Association B EEEHEEE
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Guangdong has always been the province that
has the largest LPG consumption in China.
Traditionally, about 70% of the LPG consumption
was for household use while the remaining 30%
was for commercial, industrial and transportation
use. Notwithstanding that the demand growth
in recent years has shown signs of a slow down
(growth in 2011 was less than 2%) as a result of
shifting to new energy products in certain part
of the household market, we still have strong
confidence in the future of Guangdong LPG market.
First of all, the application of LPG as feedstock
for petrochemical production has just started. The
gradual completion of such petrochemical facilities
in coastal Quangdong, which follows the policy of
the central government to develop Golan Harbour,
the location of “NewOcean Terminal”, as a major
petrochemical hub for Southern China, will soon
boost up the demand of LPG (as feedstock) in the
coastal areas. Secondly, more factories and vehicles
are converting themselves from using oil to gas
as the fuel. We anticipate that these driving forces
shall reinstate the demand growth in Guangdong
to the level of 8% to 10% per annum in the coming
5 years.

Guangzhou Autogas Market

Guangzhou has an autogas demand of about
400,000 tons to 420,000 tons per annum. As at
the end of 2011, there were 38 autogas refueling
stations in Guangzhou serving about 8,000 buses
and 20,000 taxies. Out of the 38 stations, Lianxin
owned 17, SHV China owned 11, Sino Gas owned
6, and each of the remaining operators owns
only one or two stations. The 3 largest operators
together own about 90% of all the stations and
obviously dominate the market. As the pump price
is adjustable monthly in accordance with a price
formula and the provision of autogas service is very
much limited to the area of the stations, hostile
competition is unlikely to occur.
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2.2

2.3

LPG Purchase

The Group acquired in total about 1,450,000 tons of
LPG in the year of 2011, an increase of about 19%
as compared with that of about 1,219,000 tons
in 2010. The Group purchased two types of LPG,
the imported gas and the domestic gas. Imported
gas that was sourced mainly from the Middle East
amounted to about 843,000 tons, about 74% more
than that of about 485,000 tons in 2010. Domestic
gas that was sourced from the oil refineries in
Guangdong, Guangxi, Hunan and Hubei amounted
to about 607,000 tons, about 17% less than that of
about approximately 734,000 tons in 2010.

LPG Sales

LPG Wholesaling

The Group’s LPG wholesaling business covers
mainly the Southern China region and neighboring
cities and countries. Its target customers include
overseas buyers, industrial customers, auto-gas
refueling operators and other bottling plants in the
region. Total wholesaling volume reached about
1,233,000 tons in 2011, an increase of about 22%
as compared with that of about 1,010,000 tons in
2010.

Industrial Customers

The Group’s industrial customers in the region
include petrochemical plants, aluminum mills, air-
conditioner manufacturers, lighter manufacturers,
ceramic factories, glass factories and automobile
manufacturers. Sales to the industrial customers
amounted to about 434,000 tons, an increase
of about 26% in comparison with that of about
343,000 tons in 2010. In the meantime, many
factories in Guangdong are still using heavy oil as

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1888 REBEER QA
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fuel for production. The demand for heavy oil is
huge, about 5 million tons per annum. Under the
policy of the Chinese government for environmental
protection, many factories are required to undergo
oil to gas conversion. We have strong confidence
that our participation in the promotion of the oil
to gas conversion campaign shall create sales
opportunities. Technical and financial supports are
provided, and in return long term supply contracts
are entered into with the factories to enhance sales
to the industrial customers.

Auto-gas Operators

The Group is wholesaling to auto-gas operators
in Guangzhou and Wuhan. Benefiting from the
synergy brought about by the Lianxin acquisition,
wholesaling of auto-gas grew by a significant 84%
to about 239,000 tons (2010: about 130,000 tons).
However, such wholesaling volume will not be
maintained in the coming year. Since January 2012
when the Group has completed the acquisition
of the entire registered capital of Lianxin, the
wholesaling volume in question shall be re-classified
as the Group’s Autogas Refueling Sales.

Overseas Customers

Overseas customers are mostly located in Hong
Kong, Macau, Philippines and Vietnam. Sales in
this respect in 2011 amounted to about 430,000
tons, an increase of about 89% as compared with
that of about 227,000 tons in 2010. Amongst the
increased sales, the majority of the cargo had not
been brought to the bonded warehouse of our
Zhuhai Terminal. The cargo was instead trans-
shipped through other terminals, then to the
buyer’s destination in order to maximize the logistic
efficiency. The profitability of this type of transaction
is quite moderate and it is anticipated to reduce
gradually in line with the improvement of Zhuhai
Terminal’s throughput capability.
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Other Bottling Plants

Being the leading LPG wholesaler in Guangdong,
the Group is a natural candidate for wholesale
supply to other bottling plants (which serves
mainly the household market) in the region. Since
2006 when industrial and auto-gas customers
were designated as the targets for long term
development, the Group has changed its business
strategy regarding supplies to other bottling plants.
Sales to these bottling plants in the region have
been restricted to mainly domestic gas, and the
volume of purchase for this business sector would
be strictly determined by sales secured. With such
restrictions, the volume of wholesaling to other
bottling plants is expected to fluctuate from time to
time. For 2011, sales in this respect amounted to
about 130,000 tons, down by about 58% from that
of about 310,000 tons in 2010.

LPG Retailing
Bottled LPG

LPG retailing refers to sales of bottled LPG
conducted by the Group’s bottling plants. As at
the end 2011, the Group owned and operated 16
bottling plants and about 220 retail outlets situated
in 11 cities in Southern China including Guilin,
Lipu, Wuzhou, Cangwu of Guangxi Province and
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Maoming, Huadu,
Deging, Qingyuan of Guangdong Province. In
addition, the Group acquired a distributor in Macau
in March 2010 to start its bottled LPG sales in
Macau.

Targeted customers of bottled LPG are mainly
household and commercial users (such as
restaurants, food outlets). Traditionally, retail
business could only be expanded by the
increase in number of retail outlets. As the major

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1888 REBEER QA
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cities of Guangdong become more and more
commercialized, to identify suitable shop space for
LPG retail outlets is no longer an easy task. In order
that business development is not to be hindered by
this problem, the Group established a computerized
customer service centre in Zhuhai at the end of
year 2010. Customers in the whole of Guangdong
can place orders by dialing one phone number - the
service hot-line. The service centre will immediately
notify the bottle wagon closest to the customer to
make prompt delivery of the bottle and complete
the transaction. The sales model integrates the
bottle wagon with the efficient telecommunication
system built around the service hot-line and turns
the wagon into a mobile LPG sales outlet.

The establishment of the customer service centre
has effectively helped to boost retailing sales. For
2011, sales of bottled LPG reached about 217,000
tons, an increase of about 4% in comparison with
that of about 209,000 tons in 2010. As at the end
of 2011, the Group has about 762,000 captive
household customers, an increase of about 11%
as compared with that of about 686,000 captive
household customers in 2010. As the same time,
the Group has about 3,900 commercial customers,
an increase of about 2.6% as compared with that of
about 3,800 commercial customers in 2010.

Autogas Refueling

As the financial results of Lianxin were not yet
consolidated into the financial statements of the
Group in 2011, the Group had not recorded LPG
sales under the category of autogas refueling.
Based on the volume of autogas currently supplied
to autogas operators (including Lianxin), sales under
this category is assessed to be about 240,000 tons
to 250,000 tons per annum.
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2.4

Proportion of Wholesaling and Retailing

The wholesaling and retailing proportion was about
85:15 in the year 2011. As compared with that of
83:17 in the year 2010, the wholesaling portion
was slightly raised. We however anticipate that the
retailing portion will record a substantial growth
in the coming year as the majority of wholesaling
to autogas operators shall be re-classified as the
Group’s autogas refueling sales for the entire year
of 2012.

Logistics and Distribution

Since the beginning of this year, the Group has
continually strengthened its distribution capability in
order that any possible bottle-neck problem could
be tackled in advance. Currently, the Group owns
10 tanker trucks mainly for bulk distribution of LPG
to industrial customers that demand for assurance
in quality. Also, there are about 150 bottle wagons
shuttling around the locations with a high density
of customers, ready to carry out job orders from
the service centre and ensure prompt delivery of
the bottles. More tanker trucks and bottle wagons
are anticipated to be added to the fleet in the
coming year for further enhancement of the logistic
efficiency. With respect to the Zhuhai Terminal,
other than the addition of two berths which started
construction during the year, application has
been made for construction of two additional LPG
storage tanks each of 2,500 tons. Site preparation
is now under way and construction is scheduled
to complete by middle of next year. By then, the
Zhuhai Terminal is able to distribute routinely about
6,000 tons of LPG per day, and its throughput
capacity will be expanded to about 2,100,000 tons
per annum.
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2.4

}4 LPG station

g =

HBEZE LG

0NN FHBERTESALLAIK
#)585:15 » 820104 83:17 Z Lk,
Bl BLEEMENERMES -
JEETE20124F - ¥ RBENR

Fﬁaﬁ%ttﬁﬁé%i?#‘%@m%%i
EEMEHBEEREERD

HT 7

B -

hREE

FYIFABERD LB ER X
B REPEEEANYRIASERMN
R DAk G S IE R PR B -
BREEBEE10BBERNTESR
FiETRE - IR R(IERS
EE - BINRE150Z A A EMR
BERFEPNMEETT 0 WA
WERPIRBEHL - REEITRE
ARRABLE o ﬁiﬁiiﬁﬁi%{%
FEARR—FAZSEELIN -
FREYTREE - o - I%/iﬁ% G|
BT AR EAM ZINERFER
HITEETRR) FCHEBEMNE
ERRE S 2,500 WA R R R T -
BRIC B REE  #ETEHE
T 2013 F A A] LASERK © BB« Tk
HIREMN B HENBARAR
#96,000M - T HEBEAELD
210 BB MF -

e

&
=




Management Discussion and Analysis

EREZ S WEAT

3.

Business Outlook

3.1

3.2

To cater for the long term need for a self-owned
property as the business and administration centre
in China, during the year the Group acquired a
land site of approximately 15,000 square metres
located in the Xiang Zhou District of Zhuhai. The
site is currently in the land-use planning stage. It
is intended that approximately 50% of approved
gross floor area will be used as the Group’s sales
and administration headquarters in China and for
rental purposes, and the remainder will be used as
a property development for sale.

With the completion of the second stage of Lianxin
acquisition at the beginning of 2012, the Group
is now engaging directly in the autogas refueling
business. The autogas business is anticipated to
generate LPG retail sales of about 250,000 tons
per annum and produce a much higher gross
profit margin. Immediately after completion of the
acquisition, the Group has put forth a series of
development plans related to autogas refueling.
In particular, the Group will make use of the
Guangzhou model to expand into the autogas
market of other cities in the Guangdong Province.
We are confident that autogas refueling will become
a new driving force to enhance the Group’s earning
capability.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

In respect of the plan to sell bottled LPG in Hong
Kong, the license of “Registered Gas Supply
Company” has been awarded by the Hong Kong
Government in September 2011. In the meantime,
the Building Department is processing our
application for approval of the construction plans of
the transit warehouse that will be built in Tuen Mun.
Construction of the warehouse shall take about 3
months from the time the approval is obtained. By
then, the sales of bottled LPG in Hong Kong under
the NewOcean brand will commence.

Proximity of the Zhuhai Hengqin Bottling Plant to
the Macau/Zhuhai border has given a predominant
niche to the Group which has been promoting
cross border bottle refilling services to the Macau
distributors. Through the adoption of this service
model, transportation distance will be shortened,
logistic efficiency enhanced and transportation
cost reduced. All these benefit both the buyer and
the seller mutually. In the second half of 2011,
some transactions on trial were concluded with
encouraging response from the counterparts. Rapid
growth of this business in 2012 is expected.

In respect of the oil products project, construction
of all storage tanks has been completed by the
end of 2011. Meanwhile, the pipeline system and
auxiliary facilities are being installed with all works
scheduled to complete in the third quarter of 2012.
In operating the oil products business, a strategy
similar to that of LPG will be adopted, that is to
say, emphasis will be put on high storage turnover
and low inventory; an integrated supply chain
and extensive distribution networks will also be
built at the same time targeting continual market
share expansion. The Group will capitalize on the
experience gained from building the foundation for
our LPG business in the development of the oil
products business, and is now poised to meet the
challenging goal of achieving 2,000,000 tons of
annual sales in a few years’ time.
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Liquidity And Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$124,339,000 (2010:
HK$727,881,000) and the Group’s bank balances and cash
was approximately HK$877,595,000 (2010: HK$380,181,000).
At the end of reporting date, current ratio was 1.01:1 (2010:
1.18:1), quick ratio was 0.96:1 (2010: 1.06:1), gearing ratio
was 0.24:1 (2010: 0.17:1) which was calculated based on
total long term borrowings of approximately HK$444,842,000
(2010: HK$254,246,000) and total equity of approximately
HK$1,847,535,000 (2010: HK$1,478,591,000).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2011, the Group pledged its bank deposits
amounting to approximately HK$4,209,577,000 (2010:
HK$2,035,865,000) to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed 740 (2010: 630)
full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. The
Group remunerated the employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market practice. Employee benefits
provided by the Group include a provident fund scheme,
medical insurance scheme and an employee share option
scheme.

4 LPG station

RBRERMERE

R2011F12A831H  AEBZRBEEFE
4 H#5124,339,0007%7t(2010 : 727,881,000
BIL) - IRITE R RIR € 4 A877,595,000%
7‘5<201o 1 380,181,00078 7T ) » M| & & R
SRR A1.01:1 (2010 £ 1.18:1) 5 EF
tt$7,%§>o.96.1 (2010:1.06:1) - EEAGELL X
50.24:1(2010 : 017:1) - W IR ERHEE
42 FH #)444,842,0007% 7T(2010 : 254,246,000
7T A ZS 454 1,847,535,000 %5 75 (2010
1,478,591,000/8 70 )5t & -

RARR

HZ2011FEKX2010F12 A31 8 » AEEI
BEARREE -

REEH

#2011 F12A318 AEEAES —KIE
1T 18 K M #5 #94,209,577,0007%8 £ (2010 :
2,035,865,000;%ﬁ)ZﬁEﬁﬁ?Mﬁﬁ °

& & 5 i & i 3%

HE2011F12A318 AEBREE - R
PSR B 740 (2010 : 630) 22 RIES -
AEBMEBEZTEIZIERR KBREERD
BENWRSETL - AEBZETENEIRE
BEIMATES MR - BERRLESBERE
itEl -

Annual Report 2011 =B ——F &3]




Corporate Governance Report
12 Hr/\lil #& =

The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that
none of the non-executive directors are appointed for a
fixed term, instead their tenure of office are governed by
the provisions for retirement by rotation and re-election as
provided in the Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions
are described in the paragraph headed “Non-executive
Directors” below). The Board believes that the fixing of
the tenure of non-executive directors by way of provisions
contained in the Bye-laws, and the shareholders’ right to re-
elect retiring non-executive directors as contained in the Bye-
laws, will serve the long term interests of the Company. In the
opinion of the Board, the measures adopted by the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Director’s Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises seven executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2011 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun

Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

Managing director Shum Chun, Lawrence is the son of Shum
Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a cousin of Cen
Ziniu, executive director of the Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board is vested with the following roles and functions,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management:

° To establish the strategic direction for the development
of the Company and to set the objectives of the
management;

° To approve annual budgets, major funding proposals and
investment proposals;

° To decide on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, directors appointment, dividend and
accounting policies; and

° To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting
and compliance.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, Board
meetings are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are
consulted on the agenda. Procedures are established for all
directors to have free access to board papers and related
information, to review the Group’s internal control, and to have
the services of the Company Secretary to ensure matters are
transacted in the Board in accordance applicable rules and
practices. Directors may seek independent professional advice
upon reasonable request to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Proposed regular Board meeting schedule for the current year
is circulated to the Board in the preceding year. The following
table shows the attendance of directors at meetings of the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2011:

Name of director

EEMS

EE®(E)

AFERTARAZESSYEHNMRE A
—FRESSERN - TREREZ2011412
ASTBILFERSEENESTe R 2 LE
8%

Number of Meetings

Executive Directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun

Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Chairman and Managing Director

Attended
HEEHRRE
HITER:
B (FE) 6/6
BB (EFEEE) 6/6
2545 1 6/6
BT 6/6
AR 6/6
EXRE 6/6
T 6/6
BUHHTESE:
w95 6/6
PR B JE 6/6
HadiEL 6/6
ITRREFHER

The offices of Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company are separated by written guidelines adopted by
the Board to ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The
responsibilities of the Chairman include leadership of the
Board, providing relevant information and mobilizing the
collective resources of the directors in the Board’s roles and
functions. The Managing Director is responsible for leadership
of the management, and for execution of business strategies
and front-line execution.
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s Bye-
laws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance
with the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee has just been set up in March 2012. In addition to
the above 3 Committees, the Board has set up an Executive
Committee comprising all executive directors on the Board.
Under its terms of reference, the Executive Committee is
responsible for the oversight of the management of the Group
and the formulation of administrative guidelines.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee that are in line with the principles
of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors and two executive
directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing remuneration
policies and overseeing the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee meets
at least once a year to access the performance and review the
annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in
the year 2011 to review, among other things, the remuneration
packages of the Chairman and the executive directors and the
attendance of each member is as follows:

FHERE

ARBMRIENFMEZESRESRE  ER
REPEERT AR ST AR — 2 e
FNEZESh U TR IIFNTEER?2
MITEREK :

RHB(ZRELE)
BRIBE
ratiE L

=
AR

FNZE e aREXANAEERHE ZHMH
BRBTEF  NEERTEERSRERE
B2HMASE FHNZEGERLARERE
ALBABZHEEKT BEZRSRER
ABFBEAZEREEBES FHZEEE
FRIUBT-REZNFERALEHNSR
BEABBFZHFMEES -

FHZE @R 20N FEANAR2REHE - K
EMIRRNTESZHFMASL - SRKE
ZHFEEMT :

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BREMSE HEEFRRE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) REB(ZESLE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wAETIET 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2a 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 2/2
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee that are in line with the principles of the CG Code.
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal
control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year 2011 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

o Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

o Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial
statements.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at
meeting during the year is as follows:

FRERE(H)

REERERZESBUMELFEREMT

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BEMR HEFERRE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) REB(ZELEE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe wAETIET 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence S 2/2
Cen Ziniu T4 2/2

Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has not
set up a Nomination Committee. By a written resolution of the
Board dated 30 March 2012, a Nomination Committee was
established with written terms of reference that are in line with
the requirements of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises of all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Siu Hung

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify
suitably qualified individual for appointment to the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors.

As the Nomination Committee has just been formed in March
2012, no meetings have yet been held.
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable

to the Company’s auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
is set out as follows:

Services rendered

A &

REBEFEAR - BN BN TFARRZEKM
®E « AEMRHSEEITZERINT

Fees paid/payable

BRI At 2ft EfER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services EER 3,218

Non-audit services IEF RS 1,432

Total A&t 4,650
Internal Control AERES

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The management
of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control is conducted by the internal audit function of the
management on an on-going basis, and the responsible
personnel will directly report to the Audit Committee on any
significant finding on internal controls.

Through out the year 2011, the Company complied with the
code provisions on internal controls as stipulated in the CG
Code. During the year the Company conducted a full review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and discussed the assessment bases with the management.
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Accountability and Audit

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and ensuring that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page
45.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas and sales of electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 48.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.3 cents per share to the shareholder whose names
appear on the register of members of 28 May 2012 amounting
to approximately HK$30,035,000. On 16 March 2012, the
number of shares issued and fully paid is 1,305,853,374
(2010: 1,305,8583,374).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately
HK$289,843,000 (2010: HK$115,004,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expend and upgrade its gas plant.

During the year, the Group did not acquired any property,
plant and equipment, through the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Details of these and other movements during the year in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves & s
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to ARABR2011F12 A1 BRI LR FRE
shareholders as at 31 December 2011 were as follows: KRBT -
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
Contributed surplus BB 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings R AT 85,534 17,693
87,201 19,360
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the BEABREI1GIFERREUEFIA) » ARF]
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for ZEABBRAIHDIK - AT WHIRTHE
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a Mo BIR AR EREBABBRP TR IR
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if: & BIER IR
(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its (a) ARBEEHNREENEEDBE
liabilities as they become due; or 7% Bk
(b) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less b) ARABEEUZEEREERES
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share & - BBRITRARRORER LM o

capital and share premium accounts.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of
the five largest customers accounted for 16% and 55% (2010:
15% and 54%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover for
the year.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for 16% and 52% (2010: 22%
and 76%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase for the
year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun

Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, Mr. Cen Ziniu and Mr. Cai
Xikun, executive directors shall retire by rotation from office
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Though being eligible, Mr. Cai Xikun will not offer himself
for re-election. Other directors retiring at the annual general
meeting have offered themselves for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2011, the interests of the directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

EFERERTHRARNRKNGREMEG
PR

MR2011FE12A31H  EERTETHAS
MEEHMBEARARG REEEEE 2K
HEREBRDT  BEARRAREZRSFR
HAE &1 25 352 548 TE BR 8RR IR 6B Pt T 73
BEzERMAERZ  RERELTARE
FETBHFRG2EFETAURTE  EANER
NA) R FT ES T

(a) FLFSKREEO0.I10ETHERPZLF

of the Company

L}

Percentage
of the issued

Number share capital
of issued of the
ordinary Company
shares held FR{EE LT

Name of director Capacity FRISE 81T ERTRA

EENE 514 HEKRHAE Bk

Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 22,420,000 1.72

S0 BEREEA

Family interest (note 1) 490,779,280 37.58
KGR (Mt 1)
513,199,280 39.30

Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 49,933,558 3.82

L& ERBEAA

Other (note 2) 73,616,892 5.64
Hih(#fet2)
123,550,450 9.46

Cen Ziniu Other (note 2) 4,907,793 0.38

ZF4 Hh(Hit2)

Notes: Biaz:

1. These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares 1 ZERMER S BB E/NBR A
held as corporate interest by Tong Shiu Ming, spouse of NEIHEEZR BBSHEREEREAR
Shum Siu Hung, through Uniocean Investments Limited (/88 1) # B 2 490,779,280 A% A% 17
(“Uniocean”) as referred to in note 2 below and note 1 HE(R T T R FEARE |ak M
under section (a) in the paragraph headed “Substantial 1) WHEARS LB ARKER
Shareholders” and were deemed to be the family interest p=¥ =i
of Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect respectively 15% and 1% 2. RERERNIEEA RS TR
proportional interest of Shum Chun, Lawrence and Cen Y& B PIT $5 5 490,779,280 B AE (7 &
Ziniu in the 490,779,280 shares held by Uniocean. B A15% 1% 7 s

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1888 REBEER QA




Directors’ Report

&

(b)

R

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares EFEREETRASRERG RIERE®
and Underlying Shares (Continued) RZERZ)
Share options (b) FHER%IE

Number of

underlying

Number of shares

Name of executive director Capacity options held FR¥5+HRR

RITEFRR {3 FrisiRBR BB B8 B

Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 9,940,358 9,940,358
=0 EREAA

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner 6,626,905 6,626,905
AR EmEEA

Siu Ka Fai, Brian Beneficial owner 4,970,179 4,970,179
EEV- EREEA

21,537,442 21,537,442

Number of

underlying

Name of independent Number of shares

non-executive director Capacity options held FR¥5+HRR

BIAFRTEFHR {3 FrisiRBR B A Bifr8 B

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony Beneficial owner 1,104,484 1,104,484

BEmEAA

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in
certain subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for
the Group, none of the directors, chief executive nor their
respective associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31

December 2011.

BREXFHEBEERE TESREANEENUE
AEAMRETHBARBEEZREARD
G A2011F12 831 FEFF - 217
BABRBESAZHBEALTTERELAR
RIS BHE R R 2 BHFERIARR -
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Directors’ Report
EEgHE

Share Options B

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set KRB ZEREASFBINGEEUBEHRE
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. MsE32 -

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TRFERQRBFRERE 2 EE)

share options during the year:

Outstanding at Outstanding at

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
Category 1: Directors Option type 7 31.12.2011 7 31.12.2010
W1 EF R HERITE HERITE
Shum Siu Hung 2006B 9,940,358 9,940,358
o
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 2006B 6,626,905 6,626,905
it AR
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 2006A 4,970,179 4,970,179
EEV

21,537,442 21,537,442
Category 2: Independent
Non-Executive Directors
B2 BIAFATES
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony 2006B 1,104,484 1,104,484
K995
Category 3: Employees 2006A 9,940,358 9,940,358
S¥E3: BT

32,582,284 32,582,284

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1888 REBEER QA
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Directors’ Report
EEgHE

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly in any contract, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MREERNRRFZRH

fr EXFTEES  ANRF] - HERAAHK
HALAI B A AR FRER RSB E
Mz EARARES  HEEAZRBX
185X A N F R AR W BB A 1~ Bl s (R (] H )R
ABEE 2 B B 7 MBS F e o

EE RERRREXSHZHER

FRAZBMER SHHBECENGRE M REM
R

B EXPTREESN - ARA] - R AR E
EMEMBARYEZ2EITYARAEERK
BEEEREEIEERETZEERNEM
RAFERERAAEFAERNFEARABRZ
EP NN
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ERTWME

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that
other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

(a)

Name of shareholder

BRRER

Capacity
Sin

Tong Shiu Ming
& /]NFA

Held by corporation (note 1)
ARRIERER (Mt 1)
Family interest (note 2)
KiktEm (Hit2)

Yam Tak Cheung Held by corporation (note 3)

TEE A e A (M5 3)
Notes: Bt -
1. 490,779,280 shares of the Company were held as 1.

corporate interest by Tong Shiu Ming through Uniocean
which was owned as to 64% by Tong Shiu Ming, 15% by
Shum Chun, Lawrence, 15% by Shum Ho, Neo, 5% by
Wu Hong Cho and 1% by Cen Ziniu.

2. These represent the same block of 22,420,000 shares held 2.
beneficially by Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Tong Shiu Ming
as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in Shares
and Underlying Shares” and were deemed to be the family
interest of Tong Shiu Ming.

3. 80,000,000 shares of the Company were held by 3.
Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated
Asset”). Yam Tak Cheung owned 100% of Integrated
Asset and was deemed to be the controlling shareholder
of Integrated Asset.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1888 REBEER QA

EFERX

R2011F12 831 B REBEARQAKEBES
N EAE 16055 336 1538 F
AR

,,\*“*Zixﬂxﬁﬂ

TIERAGERRARBEEAR

ERITIRAZBRAED AR

REFLTFISHREEO0.10 BT HiEMRZLF

-

Number

of issued
ordinary
shares held
D ECE SN
ERTHEER
A

490,779,280
22,420,000

80,000,000

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

of the
Company
&2 E
EERTERE
Bk

37.58
1.72

6.13

$2ﬁ24%7m2mk&fm%bwu

@j&

15% »

ZE R BIE /N 2 BB 2 Y
22,420,000 AR 7 18R ([ E 5

BEWRE -

BERENR 2

= Eﬁ[ﬁ&*%dﬁ 5 BIER 64% »

15% 5% N 1% °

SRS
ES e

ABRBH KRR 2 #Eas ] (a) BT BE
WHAR RE NAAKRERITE -

1) -

7K A &) 2 80,000,000 % A% 19 F Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited ([ ZNFE |)

BB o EIREHA AE100% 1

R
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Directors’ Report
EEgHE

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

(b) Share options

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRI & 13

Tong Shiu Ming
BN e Sl i)

Note: Share option to subscribe 9,940,358 shares were held by
Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Tong Shiu Ming as referred
to in note 1 under section (b) of the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and were deemed to be the family
interest of Tong Shiu Ming.

Other than disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short position
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2011.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Family interest (note)

EFEREE)
(b) HEBB%IE

Number of
underlying
Number of shares
share options FriS1ERR
FrsIRBXER A BinE R
9,940,358 9,940,358

Kzt - AT3R85 9,940,358 PRAX (5 2 RERX HE T /N
HriE@B2LERE (R EXE@BRIES
MEBITHABRBMD RMBRRD 2 i
=R - AR AE DR R ikER -

B EXFIHEEIN BARFIMES
- R2011F12A381H AR A B
BT A% AN AR 7 4 A R] A 4B A R 2 IO

o
I SR

AEBEIZHMBRIIBFHEESRE
BEZER - BRMBENHIET -

AATEEZMeTHFHESREEEA
AR EEEE  EAXRDRT BTSSR
HEUTEEET -

ARFRROBBRNE  ERAHEBRA
arEE 2R - AW E 2 HBERRGA
B SR A FE 82 -
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Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-law, or the laws of Bermuda, which would

oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

Events After the Reporting Period

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1888 REBEER QA
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN Az BN S

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 166, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BMBRERREBRAFERE
(RERZZFMELZBRAF])

EEDERIIEHNFE48E 166 EFBRLRE
BEERAR(ERAR D EETFRAR(GREIE
SEZEEAUBRE - SREVBHREBE
2011 F12 A1 B Z &R 6B K - UK
HEZALFEZEAEEKER KA E
HEHREGEEESRERERNEZGFK
RIE R E AP ERRRE -

EERGeMBEBRIAE

BERAIZEZARBEHB LGS RM
ZEBUMBHREENREE ARG 2 WE
BMEmSI BB ER T HRZF5E M5
B WMBETERR  BRAEFEFR
NEEMAFHYHRE G 575 H AR AR AR
HRESYE - MEARA M SRR N7 E B R GE
HERMEMHERHEREL - EERES
HEEZEFHE  REREATELAEZSE
BEEE
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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BN Az BN S

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2012

R

EERE  ZERAUBREREBRERSY
BREEBETEHRAN bR SEER 2011
F12A31 B2 B A R EREBEZ B LEF
EZHABERRERE  YERRBREBARIK
Bl HERELSHER -

PEEATAD

BE - REMS FRERIT
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AT EWEER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 F#T FET
Revenue WA 6 10,116,643 8,477,715
Cost of sales SHE A (9,689,988) (8,030,917)
Gross profit EAH 426,655 446,798
Interest income on pledged Renminbi ETEEWJ\E%(U\E??J)

(“RMB”) bank deposits TR EHA 77,718 47,088
Interest income from entrusted loan %-%%“’”ﬂ BUA 8 160,710 2,600
Net exchange gain bE X 3855 5 RE 8 175,314 58,462
Other income HAb A 8 8,664 7,170
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHIZ W (99,275) (79,093)
Administrative expenses TH X H (180,861) (136,432)
Impairment on goodwill recognised EREERE 19 (40,000) -
Changes in fair values of derivative T4 E A F(E

financial instruments - 8,495 (82,087)
Interests on bank trust receipts loans LAARERITEZRE IR

pledged with RMB bank deposits TEEBIRER A E (60,877) (40,946)
Other finance costs b g & pk A 9 (144,526) (68,348)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled 9k — %% £t [R5 Il & 52

entity il 927 239
Profit before taxation R 5 B A 11 332,944 155,451
Taxation charge FHRIE X H 10 (29,915) (18,067)
Profit for the year F R A 303,029 137,384
Other comprehensive income H b2l

Exchange differences arising BEEAEH

on translation =%a 59,676 33,511
Total comprehensive income FRBEEE WS

for the year 362,705 170,895
Profit (loss) for the year FEMRF A T (E548)

attributable to:

Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE FEN 306,159 136,647

Non-controlling interests eI (3,130) 737

303,029 137,384
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AT EWEER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
23 FAET FAET
Total comprehensive income weEmEmizE(EZE)
(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIETZEDN 365,741 169,778
Non-controlling interests FEIE il = (3,036) 1,117
362,705 170,895
Earnings per share B 15
Basic HA HK23.45 cents#fll  HK11.59 cents#fll
Diluted #E HK23.09 centsi#fll  HK11.42 cents Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

frRe WRIAILR

At 31 December 2011

R20114F 12831 H
2011 2010
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bz F#ETT FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - 23 KR ER 16 941,784 668,263
Land use rights o 3 B A 17 250,842 64,631
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEBRNHEERE 18 10,811 11,106
Goodwill [EES 19 96,429 130,224
Other intangible assets ,H\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ/ﬁﬁ 20 8,929 12,498
Interest in a jointly controlled entity HEEH| e 21 9,201 7,861
Available for sale investment ‘H O 37 3,701 3,526
Derivative financial instruments MEEHKI/E 44 45,715 —
Entrusted loan ZEER 37 644,423 —
Other assets H At & 2= 22 175,883 125,613
Deferred tax assets FRIETIHE E 33 1,781 1,610
2,189,499 1,025,332
Current assets EEE
Inventories 558 23 433,595 469,727
Trade debtors and bills receivable EWE FERAREREE 24 2,127,923 756,361
Other debtors, deposits and Hﬁﬂfgﬂﬁl %’K ek
prepayments TR 24 565,394 446,371
Derivative financial instruments ?ﬁiﬂﬁ%lﬂ 44 28,815 44,023
Entrusted loan ZEER 37 - 638,053
Lands use rights T {5 R 17 3,024 2,880
Prepaid lease payments for coast B ETE T & KT 18 846 806
Properties under development for 1%?%?6):43%%
sales 27 185,867 —
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRITIF K 26 4,209,577 2,035,865
Bank balances and cash RITERNIR S 26 877,595 380,181
8,432,636 4,774,267
Current liabilities mE AR
Trade creditors and bills payable BN E SRR EN EE 28 1,074,288 460,611
Other creditors and accrued H bR BT E A
charges 29 294,057 124,127
Amount due to a jointly controlled FEA — K KR F e
entity | 25 - 458
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMKT A 44 106,727 88,172
Tax liabilities MIEEHE 44,790 26,401
Borrowings — repayable within B — BR—FRA
one year B 30 6,782,885 3,341,329
Obligation for put option to non- % T — KM B A A
controlling shareholder of a FEVE IR R ROA T
subsidiary ZEE 34 5,550 5,288
8,308,297 4,046,386
Net current assets mENEESRE 124,339 727,881
Total assets less current liabilities BEERADEE 2,313,838 1,753,213
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

raE BRI ER
At 31 December 2011
R20114#12H31 H

2011 2010

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 TFET FET
Capital and reserves BE R GH R
Share capital Bz 31 130,586 130,586
Share premium and other reserves B9 i (B B B 1,693,168 1,338,122
Equity attributable to equity holders — ZNA 2 #E253EH A
of the Company FEfhHE = 1,823,754 1,468,708
Non-controlling interests FEE I RE S 23,781 9,883
Total equity i 1,847,535 1,478,591
Non-current liabilities EREIAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE & 33 21,461 20,376
Borrowings — repayable B — R—FEEE
over one year 30 444,842 254,246
466,303 274,622
2,313,838 1,753,213

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 166
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 16
March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shum Siu Hung
Hou
Director

EZE

EZgCN2012F3 A 16 HEH RIRENZE
FABE16 A2 AMBWE - YA TIHE
ERREE -

Shum Chun, Lawrence
%8
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

. HE N/ gy
MAEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ELEHEREARN
Statutory Share  Contributed Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options surplus Other Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total  interests
13
BRx RRER  GERR  ERER  ERGE MREGE BAERE  RMGE  REE 808  FNGINE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000 K000
Fér Tér Tér 7AT 7AT FAT - - Fér Tér Tér FET
(Note j (Note i (Note i)
) (kD) (i)
THE GROUP 550
A1 January 2010 R2010F1A18 115,586 463,013 122,085 24,167 52,231 5,663 1,667 = 29678 1,014,690 1021 1016217
Proft for the year R - - - - = = = - e 13667 1313
Exchange diferences arising ~ MEEL7EXZE
on translation - - - - 33,131 - - - - 33,131 380 33,511
Total comprehensive income. - M2 EAEEE
for the year - - - - 33,131 - - - 136,647 169,778 11 170,895
Appropriations Ak - - - 3,004 - - - - (3,004) - - -
Disposal of partelinerest ~~ HE—FMEATHHE
in a subsidiary without & BUER RN
losing control of the BRmzmsE
subsidiry - - - - (550) - - 3111 - 32,561 7439 40,000
Diidend peid pote 14~ BRRE(HE 1) - - - - - = = N (15 - (55
Dividend paid to non- RS ZRE
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (200) (200)
Issue of new shares dueto ~ RAREEMEF
open offe (nofe 31) s 15000 252,000 - - - - - - - 700 - 267,000
Transaction costs HiRERlL
atirbutable to issue of RANE
new shares - (3,769) - - - - - - - (3,763) = (3,763)
At 31 December 2010 B2010F12A318 130,586 711,250 122,085 21,11 84,812 5,663 1,667 33,111 351,763 1,466,708 9883 1,478,591
Proft (osg) for the year — EREFI(E) = = - - - - - - %6159 306159 (3130) 303029
Bxchange differences arising~ £EEEZEHZS
on {ranslation - - - - 59,582 - - - - 59,682 9 59,676
Total comprehensive income ~ FAZENEEE
for the year — - — = 59,582 = = — 306,159 365,741 (3,030) 362,705
Disposal o partal inerest ~~ HE-FHBAR
in a subsidiary without BhEaRLE
losing control of the XEINEAT
subsidry Ll = = - - (216) - - 2519 - 2363 17,134 19,497
Diidend peid pote 14~ BRRE(HE 1) - - - - - = = - (B0 (1308 - (13089)
Dividend paid to non- BfizE5ERL
controling interests e - - - - - - - - - - (200) (200)
At 31 December 2011 R0 E12731R 130,586 711,260 122,085 2,1 144178 5,663 1,667 35,690 b44.864 1,823,754 23,781 1,847,535
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,A_-,/_\ == \ 7/ I%%—[%
rEEmEER
For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(i)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the share capital, share premium and capital
redemption reserve of the Group’s former ultimate holding
company whose shares were exchanged for the Company’s
shares and the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement dated 14
April 1999.

The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed
of 32% (2010: 10%) equity interest of a subsidiary to an
independent third party without losing control. The other reserve
represents the difference between the consideration received
and the carrying amount of the 32% (2010: 10%) non-controlling
interests and the exchange reserve related to the disposed 32%
(2010: 10%) equity content of the subsidiary.

Hiat -

(ii)

N6 B 2 5 1) R 1 B (D SR BUR 2 B B A
ZARE BRI REEBR AT 2 BRA - B E
REARBEFERF - BARBRE1999F4 A
14 BRI 2 B EE L Rt 8Im #1TRAZ
EEZZ5

EEBBRBEERBETEARLME(H
B ) 2R KRR B RS Z M8 A RBR
BEMAD IR EEERE —RERES -

HE2011F12 A1 HILFE  AEBE R —
BUE=FELHE—RMERF32% (2010 :
10%) Z B4 » B S E R RITHIRE o HAb
EEIEE WA R B EL32% (2010 : 10%) 3E
rHESNREE REELEZMNBAR
32% (2010 : 10% ) HEmBIIE 7 fEfE 2 =58 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

m =L
l\‘/ : JT—E sz //IL.E%%
For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERY
Profit before taxation R 15t Al A 332,944 155,451
Adjustments for: T
Share of profit of a jointly D — KRG F 52
controlled entity il (927) (239)
Other finance costs H A 5 & Ak AR 144,526 68,348
Interests on bank trust receipts LA REESR1T 17 5 1R 19
loans pledged with RMB bank RITE uiEH&T)ﬂ b
deposits A2 60,877 40,946
Interest income PSS Hﬂz (82,893) (49,280)
Interest income from entrusted ZEEFAE WA
loan (160,710) (2,600)
(Gain) loss on change in fair MEEM%IE AR EB
value of derivative financial 2 (Fif8 ) &8
instruments (8,495) 82,087
Depreciation of property, plant VI - R REREITE
and equipment 54,144 44,092
Impairment on goodwill HWREBRE
recognised 40,000 —
Gain on disposal and & RMEE Y % - Hes
write-off of property, K&l 2 Was
plant and equipment (148) (100)
Amortisation of land use rights - 3 {58 PR AR B 2,791 3,600
Amortisation of prepaid lease G TR E BRI
payments for coast 825 786
Amortisation of other intangible HfhfEf &S
assets 3,977 3,820
Operating cash flows before EEESENRZESE
movements in working capital HeRE 386,911 346,911
Decrease (increase) in inventories 1F& 4 (i‘jju) 38,840 (40,310)
(Increase) decrease in trade FEUE 5 BRI B N R R
debtors and bills receivable (ijJD)»EiZ’/ (1,368,156) 32,107
(Increase) decrease in other EmEWERR -« e RN
debtors, deposits and FRIE (H0) s
prepayments (61,719) 138,084
(Increase) decrease in amount due B — R R4 E &K H
from a jointly controlled entity (380) R > (458) 341
Increase (decrease) in trade BB SRR RENREE
creditors and bills payable =20 G ) 602,757 (505,051)
Increase in other creditors and E{‘M’Eﬁ RRETER
accrued charges 0 65,731 20,677
Increase in properties under 5}’%?‘ R Sl
development for sales (158,150) —
Cash generated used in KEELFTARSRE
operations (494,244) (7,241)
PRC income tax paid SR BEFTEE (11,606) (10,947)
NET CASH USED IN BEXEFRARSE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BE (505,850) (18,188)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
it F#&r FET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received =R &IPS 29,705 49,280
Interest income from entrusted ZREEFFEWA

loan 114,995 2,600
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B8 2 5] (B 40BR PRS2

(net of cash and cash HeRERRESER)

equivalents acquired) 36 — (5,958)
Purchase of property, plant and  BBEYZ - #25 L&E

equipment (275,561) (124,834)
Realised gain on derivative PTHEMBITA 22 2BIE

financial instruments 46,413 27,402
Realised loss on derivative PTEMBIA B EREE

financial Instruments (48,048) (19,179)
Withdrawal of pledged bank B EIFRITEK

deposits 1,602,406 1,723,267
Placement in pledged bank FABERRITER

deposits (3,695,049) (2,332,931)
Proceeds from disposals of HEYE - WRRBHES

property, plant and equipment 1,017 632
Acquisition of leasehold land Eﬁ)\ﬂﬁgﬂjqiﬁﬁ

through purchase of subsidiary Tﬂ 35A (48,234) —
Payment for land use rights ihﬂﬁ)ﬂﬁémlﬁ (24,878) —
Payment for relocating the EENURELH EFREER

existing residents and for R IFEFRIE

demolishing the buildings on

the newly acquired land (85,038) —
Deposits paid for acquisition of U B8 R AL Rh 2

LPG stations in Guangzhou EftiRE 22 - (99,891)
Deposits paid for purchase of EEME  MERkREZ

property, plant and equipment BEffike 22 = (25,722)
Refund of deposit paid for REAFABIR—RAR

establishment of a company in AR E A

the PRC 22 — 68,111
Deposit for acquisition of WE—RWBRARZIES

subsidiary 22 (69,967) —
Purchase of available for sale BATHEERE

investment - (3,526)
Entrusted loan repayment from REBGBT) RERBZEZT

(advance to) an entity BERER(BH) 37C 71,008 (681,607)
NET CASH USED IN RETEFARERHE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,381,231) (1,422,356)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRenER
For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZEZ2011F 1231 HiIFF/E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AMEEE
Interest paid EAIHE (144,526) (109,397)
Borrowings raised ELER 12,313,539 8,272,829
Repayment of borrowings EEER (8,796,275) (6,792,334)
Proceeds from disposal of partial i & H/& 2 & &5 (0 5B 30 4%
interest in subsidiaries without KEEHIRE Z FT15
losing control 10,095 —
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMDETE — 267,000
Expenses on issue of shares BETRO S H - (3,763)
Dividend paid BAIRE (13,058) (11,558)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEEHELER&BHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,369,775 1,622,777
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND H&RERHRELIEHBMSHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 482,694 182,233
EFFECT OF FOREIGN ExgmcrE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 14,720 3,232
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MR &R ERRLIEH
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 380,181 194,716
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £XHR &R ERARLIEH
AT END OF THE YEAR 877,595 380,181
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES HReRERAKBHERS T
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITERR NI S 877,595 380,181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding
company is Uniocean Investments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The address of
the registered office of the Company is disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Group are the sale and
distribution of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and sale of
electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is RMB, the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates. For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements and convenience of the financial
statements users, the results and financial position of
the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised in  Related party disclosures

2009)
Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues
Amendments to Prepayments of a minimum
HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 funding requirement
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities

with equity instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed

dates for first-time adopters'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and

(Amendments) transition disclosures®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements’
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities’
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement’

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income’
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets’

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee benefits®

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate financial statements?

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in associates and joint
ventures’

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities®

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a

surface mine?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

(Continued)

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities relates to the presentation of changes
in the fair value of a financial liability (designated
as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group has an available-for-sales investment of 5%
registered capital of B 7 82 )R 3% & A R 2 &) ([ Bt #7 st
J&1) and call option. This available-for-sales investment
is measured at amortised cost less any identified
impairment as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010. The call option is a derivative financial asset that
measured at cost less any identified impairment as at
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010. Under
HKFRS 9 the classification and/or measurement of those
financial assets of the available-for-sales investment and
call option will be affected. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
issued but not yet effective is not expected to have a
material effect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance (effective
from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable
to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

“ NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

FESRBEE)
EBaH

WEIBRBERBEIESR - REBSH
hEE REDRLATFEFE  MAF
ENBRAKEMEREE  AKERK
WEENEEAREZAGE  RAKE
AR YRR B P R T B AT AR AR O IR
BEMZATEZENTE - WiEHERH
XA —RRAEE AR R a T HERR

KRB BRI RRIEERD &
Ea#pAaRERNERRBERZAFE
HERR - BLATN B IEBRSM -

.« BEEHEAENAERESENE
P2 B A ERAE - HARRE
BB E AR E 1258 B IR
B & AR E 195K B AEF )
RRARTE

o EUWIEE AR SER 2 KX
2 A R Sk AN SR B AT 32 DA B A4
Wi PAR D BERE Z (T B2
AR RERZNRLZHEB A
BEARATE - JIR IR B SR E
&8 B RS AR 25k A B (D
RERZARIFER T 285
KK+ Rk

o REFEVBRELEAESRF
BEHEZERBEERERILE
BXRBINBABARLEZEE
(R EAR) IRIEZERNGTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable on the basis specified in another
standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”,
as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units, (or groups
of cash-generating units), that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and the comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses of
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest
in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-
term interests that in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts, sales related taxes, returns
and allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or administrative purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and for qualifying assets,
borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property, plant and equipment, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

FESRBEE)
W% BBRRM

BRERTZN MF  KERRE 8
RRBEEERENEHREMIRSE - X
TEITBUIE T g 2 BF TIRER & M H5ik
MRBRAEIRE R R ITE LR
MEREE (A AR -

BRER T2 W% - B RREEE
RN R iR LA R R AR A R SR EL A T
Z RIEREE A B AVEMSE R A 1 3
ERBERE - Bt EAFH - Rk
BERFEDZRS2HRYRRT - £
AfAEt B 2 FEERARK

EETEBREZR ZME  #BERR
BIFRREEXTERE - HETRR
AR A B R ROV E B 18 - ;AR B 3E
BEXER LIABEREEMS  BE
RATHZIBAREZ @St BEREAL -
BEEZIREZKRYBHEEREKI SN
X BERRBIEER RFEE
TEREE ey - EE MY EEEINR
RIEEFIG HITE ©

WE BERKBERENOERNE#
BERAZEERBTEELTMBRE
ER SR BURER - BEERUERESL
ZEMBEREREERHERGEE
ERAEZ5H - UNMEaP R -

Annual Report 2011 ZEF——FF3f




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

iy 3 /\Zl-ﬂvv%i&% B{{I'%\I

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of building under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
both the land use rights and development cost for the
property. Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations recorded at the functional currency are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use
rights” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expenses that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items of income or expenses that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets except for derivative
financial instruments (see policy below) are classified
as loans and receivables and available for sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits, trade debtors, bills receivable,
other debtors and deposits and loan receivable are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held to maturity investments. The Group designated its
equity investments acquired for long term investments as
available for sale financial assets.

For available for sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss or financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financing re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in according with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds received net
of direct issue cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial
liabilities) including trade creditors and bills payable,
other creditors, obligation for put option to non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held
for trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Call option on non-financial assets

A written option to sell non-financial assets that requires
physical delivery of the underlying assets and is not
readily convertible to cash is not accounted for as
a derivative under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. The call option is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently carried at cost.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit and
loss.

If embedded derivatives relate to equity instruments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and where the fair value cannot reliably measured,
the embedded derivative is measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period. On initial recognition, the fair value of the
embedded derivative is the difference between the fair
value of the hybrid instrument and the fair value of the
host contract.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset on its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments
to share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the management are
required to make estimates about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
relating to the sale and distribution of LPG and acquired
in a business combination are impaired requires
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents the rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2011, the carrying amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets are approximately HK$96,429,000 and
HK$8,929,000 respectively (2010: HK$130,224,000 and
HK$12,498,000). For the year ended 31 December 2011,
there was an impairment of HK$40,000,000 (2010: nil)
on goodwill recognised as an expense due to continuous
thin profit margin and low cash inflows generated in three
cash generating units (“CGUSs”) in recent years. Details of
the goodwill and intangible assets are disclosed in notes
19 and 20 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimate of net realisable value of properties under
development for sales

As at 31 December 2011, properties under development
for sales of approximately HK$185,867,000 (2010: nil)
are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable
value. The estimated net realisable value is estimated
selling price less selling expenses and estimated cost of
completion which are estimated based on best available
information. Where there are any decrease in the
estimated selling price arising from any changes to the
market conditions in the PRC, recognition of any write-
down to the properties under development for sales as
an expense may be required.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 30,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues, payment of dividends and the
raise of bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing
bank borrowings.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

R ARERZERREE)

HHFERRPMRZTERRE

R2011FE12 A31 H @ FEREHRYE
ERARABRFEMSE 2RIEETER
#) 4 185,867,000/8 75(2010 : ) o {4
AT B IR FE R RERE A E R G
Bz st EEREE T H kbt
BROAK AR o fid FR A AP B T 35 AR 05 2 A {2
EEREFEEERD - AR EF R
FEREPYE S TAMORESI L -

REAREERMEIR

BExERER

AEEZERNEEBRRERAEENRN
BEERBUAFELNALE  ARER
HETFERBEERREBARRERE
REHR - AEE 2 BRREE FFER

AEBEEARETAEBER(BRERIE
BOWE ZEH) R AR AL FFE AR
DR (BREBITRARRERN )T
X o

AEBEEEBZGTRESKAREER
BERZARFERSEARE - AKE
B BBEITR - S R INERTT
fERHEERBEZRITERATFEHER
BEALE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5t

Instruments (Continued)

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during
the year.

Categories of financial instruments

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)

£ Py BB R R (RIS T o

MBIRZER

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets MERE
Loans and receivables (including BRRERFIE(BERS
cash and cash equivalents) ;ERRESER) 7,991,804 3,853,107
Available for sale investment AIEHERE 3,701 3,526
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBITA 74,530 44,023
Financial liabilities MBRE
Amortised cost B SH K AR 8,578,468 4,157,461
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBETEA 106,727 88,172
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEAERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, entrusted
loan, borrowings, trade debtors and bills receivable, other
debtors, deposits, available-for-sale investment, trade
creditors and bills payable, other creditors, obligation for
put option to non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEB T EUBTABRERRITESHRN
Re  DEMRTER  ZREEK &
R REESEAMERRE  HME
Wi e AIMEHERE  BNE
AR ENRE - EMRAERR - &
T—HKWERBIFEFRRRDAEZR
ERTEMBIR - ZEMBTAZH
BREMERE - TXHINEXFHMH
TEERAZRERFAFEZERRZ
HER - EEBEENMEEZFER U
R K B M B ROt SRBUE & 2 FE 36
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5t

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, trade creditors and bills payable and
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies as disclosed in notes 24, 26, 28 and 30
respectively. Approximately 26% (2010: 19%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities
making the sale, whilst almost 21% (2010: 11%) of
costs are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity’s functional
currency.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

Assets

RE

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)

MERBREEZARRYE(E)

G mEE

()

B

RRATETHEAR A AINEHE
ZEE  SAREEAZINERR o
REEETRKE SRR - R1T74
HERS BEBBEITERE
NEZERRENEBERER - )
HNESEE(FBE 2RI 24
26 - 28 R B0H FE) - A& E 7 8H
E R 426% (2010 : 19%) A B &
ETHENAERER TR
ASNE®E EE + #121% (2010 :
MB)NAEAUREEEB 2R
BLAINE®ETEE o

AEBUINESIE2 BB EERE
KaER2RAHPZEEENT

Liabilities

R

2011

2011

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET F#ET FET
United States Dollars Emx(l==mxl)
(“USD”) 168,516 88,823 1,562,638 1,491,533
Renminbi (“RMB”) NS
(TAR® ) 3,553,178 1,133,657 35,703 =
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T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZ2011F 12431 HILFE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i

Currency risk (Continued)

During the financial years, the management has
entered into several foreign currency forward
contracts to reduce the exposure of currency
risk. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts
and interest rate swap contracts with an aggregate
notional amount of USD816,921,000 (2010:
USD425,378,000) in relation to RMB. The details of
the derivative financial instruments are disclosed in
note 44.

In addition, two (2010: two) subsidiaries of the
Group with functional currency of USD have
intergroup balances that are denominated in RMB,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)
MERBREEZARRNE(E)

mEmeE(E)
() EEERE)

REFHEE - EEBEETHND
SNESIRER A M LURIR RS 2 57
2o A2011E12A31H A&
EHEHEFEDTEL 816,921,000
% 7£(2010 : 425,378,000E 7T ) 2
MR EE AREINEIRIFE X KT
KISHAA 4] o STEBH T A 25515
ERK 44 E -

AN AEEZMR(2010 : W
RIANXETRDEEEZHE R
BAHEAENAREEEZEERE
£ SAREEEZINERR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HKD is pegged with
USD, the currency risk is mainly arising from
exchange USD against RMB and RMB against USD.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in USD against
RMB and a 5% increase and decrease in the
RMB/USD forward exchange rate. 5% represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the RMB/USD exchange rate and
the RMB/USD forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates
or their fair value at the year end for a 5% change
in forward exchange rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
strengthen 5% against USD. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit and the
balances below would be negative.

“ NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

USD impact

2011

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)

MERBREEZARRNE(E)

wmEmEE(E)
() EEmEEE)
HREDN (&)
RMB impact

AR®BRE
2010 2011 2010

HK$°000
FET

Increase (decrease) in 4 A& A3 AN
profit for the year O
(Note) (Hiaz)
— monetary assets — EBEER
and liabilities afE 60,338
— derivative financial — PTEMTE
instruments TA (177,665)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

TET FET T#&T
56,707 152,141 49,492
(112,141) - —

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on bank balances, receivables, payables
and borrowings denominated in USD or RMB and
derivative financial instruments as at year end.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in USD against RMB in respect of the
Group’s foreign currency exposure on intergroup balance.
5% is the sensitivity rate used by the management in the
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding RMB denominated amounts due between
subsidiaries of the Group and adjusts its translation at
the year end for a 5% change in RMB rates. A positive
number below indicates increase in post-tax profit for the
year where RMB strengthens 5% against USD.

Wit  EEERRERBRETHIARE

EEOARMEERITHEL - BUER
R AN BRFR R B FUA BT B
BT AGRER -

A E 7 & B MR A S 2 NS E R
mMs @ TRANETHARE LART
5% HBURE © 5% REEE T MEX
BIEFEZEER I BRELL R - B
EoMEERASEKNEBARZEAA
REEEZAREERKEHE  INFR
HEBBEHS Y ARBEXEH A
B MARBRETLEFS5%  RIMT
IEEFRRNF AR FE 0
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T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥XRREERRMBEIARZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEREEREAERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) HiEmEE (E)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD there would be M ARBHETTEKS%  BlEEHUAT
an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for FARTREANEEEERERDZ
the year below: 2.
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit 4 A& 114 % Kl

for the year CRi4 )& (8,058) 1,629
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EEERA  BHPNFERERITARBE
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk Nz @ - MBERESI T AR EKES
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure SNGE B iz o

during the year.

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEE
The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash E AR T I5 M) R 5T B 22 B ERTT
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the ERzMGHERE - NEE 2R
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank TERTERESRENERE -
loans which charge interest at prevailing market
rates.
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. The Group’s fair
value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate borrowings (see note 30 for details of these
borrowings) and derivative financial instruments
including pay fixed and receive floating interest rate
swaps. The purpose of the Group to enter interest
rate swap is to reduce the cash flow interest
rate risk but does not fulfill the hedge accounting
requirement.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of LIBOR arising from the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and set off by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and receive
floating interest rate swaps.

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)
MERBREEZARRNE(E)

mEmeE(E)
(i) FIEER (&)

SEAN - FIRAEUE BB EAERTT
FRREFBREE  BUAEH
TMAEE A FENERERE - AKE
ZAFENEXERRERSRELME
R(ZEFERZFBEHRMES0)
RIOTEMBTE » 8HEELSN R
FRUERE - REBET LA R
HZEHNERERERENRE
B BYATFEEISETEK -

AEE VHRENRRRFITH
RAWERBDE CRRETE & -
AEEZRAEREMNEREABRERSE
PR EE B EREE 2 R
TTREFRE 2KE - WWITEN
TRBREE S XN RF B W ERE
HI)IKEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZ2011F 12431 HILFE

5.

B TS SRR BT 5

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable-rate borrowings, excluding the exposure
from the bank borrowings offset by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and
received floating interest rate swaps. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of outstanding
balances at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2011 would decrease/increase by HK$3,787,000
(2010: HK$6,732,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings, excluding the
exposure from the bank borrowings offset by the
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and received floating interest rate swaps.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group has significant concentration
risk on certain customers and the loan advance to
an entity. As at 31 December 2011, four (2010: two)
customers amounted approximately HK$1,759,731,000
(2010: HK$599,868,000) and comprised around 83%
(2010: 80%) of the Group’s trade debtors. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group is
responsible to implement credit monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debtors, other debtors
and deposits at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group has provided a loan
advance to an entity and the details are set out in note
37. The management of the Group has closely monitored
the usage of the loan by the borrower. The loan advance
is pledged by 95% equity interest of BEFTEEJR. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The major
trade debtors and the loan borrowers have substantially
settled their outstanding amounts subsequent to the end
of the reporting period. The loan borrower has settled
approximately HK$235,704,000 subsequent to the end of
the reporting period.

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)
MERBREEZARRNE(E)

ERmmE

R2011FE12 A31H AE 5 TET
EAMSAEESIUBERNES
EERKRKRAESERGEE T HERAR
HIZEBRUBEEZRAME X
SEE—LEFPRA—REBREHD
BEREEHERNEFRER - R 2011
F£12A31 8 Wz (2010: WAz ) &
F (B 491,759,731,000# 7£(2010 :
599,868,000/ 7L) * HAEEEIKE S
BR X 4983% (2010 : 80%) ° A =
ERk  ASEEEEABEETEEE
T2 DAME(RERER R 1T B SR UK B 3B
HER - BE AEEEERBAR €
SRR EBI M ERE BRR - HifE
IR R Rz & WAl R B B35 » LARE(R &E
55T EE IR B B FIBE T R SR BB &S
B AEBER—RELBREEF  F
BERKIFEI7 - AEBERERYE
REXAFEAERNER ° ZE AR
R 2 B%BREEERT - TEFE
F ARREZREAEENEERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has undrawn
short term borrowing facilities with floating rate
amounting to approximately HK$6,531,798,000 (2010:
HK$3,003,443,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivatives (excluding the call
option) and non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. The total
undiscounted cash flows adjustment column represents
the possible future cash flows attributable to the
instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liabilities
at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table

Weighted
average

effective
interest rate
igEy
ERfE

2011 R2011 4%
Non-derivative financial ~ FEATABIBEE
liabilities
Trade creditors and EGES Y
bills payable EREE =
Other creditors H it AR N -
Obligation for put BF—ZMERA
option to non- FEEHIRR
controlling AL
shareholder of a Bff
subsidiary
Fixed interest rates ERER
borrowings 2.58%
Variable interest rate FEER
borrowings 2.63%
Derivatives — net TETA - #8
settlement ek
Foreign currency INERHELN
forward contracts A
inflow
Cross currency interest XX S|
rate swap/interest B/ F%
rate swap outflow bk hiohen

5. RFEARTERMBEIRE)

MERBREEZARRNE(E)

REELEE(E)

REBE T RFFmBRSFR

Carrying

amount at

31 December

2011

2 years to R2011E

5 years 12A31H

28F5% ZEEE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,074,288 - - 1,074,288 1,074,288
234,084 23,227 13,592 270,903 270,903
5,550 - - 5,550 5,550
2,347,072 2,506,383 35,163 4,888,618 4,769,799
2,128,064 225,425 147,105 2,500,594 2,457,928
5,789,058 2,755,035 195,860 8,739,953 8,578,468
(8,165) (5,950) - (14,115) (14,115)
76,694 8,357 6,976 92,027 92,027
68,529 2,407 6,976 77,912 77,912
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

5. BEEARTERMBEIR®)

MERBREEZARRNE(E)

ROELmEE ()

RBET RFFmEZ% (&)

Carrying
Weighted amount at
average 31 December
effective 2010
interest rate Within Over 2 years to 720105
MEFH 1 year 1 year 5 years Total 12R31H
ERFI= 1ER 1EHE 2EELE ek pd i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2010 #2010 F
Non-derivative financial ~ JEATABIB AR
liabilities
Trade creditors and ENEZHERR
bills payable [ENEE - 460,611 - - 460,611 460,611
Other creditors H i ETIRH - 73,864 4,279 17,844 95,987 95,987
Obligation for put BF—ZMEAR
option to non- FEHIRE
controlling Rt
shareholder of a Eff
subsidiary 5,288 - - 5,288 5,288
Fixed interest rates EEER
borrowings 2.52% 772,235 30,984 271,994 1,075,213 1,056,848
Variable interest rate EFEER
borrowings 1.99% 1,957,706 503,086 111,974 2,572,766 2,538,727
3,269,704 538,349 401,812 4,209,865 4,157,461
Derivatives — net TETR - £8
settlement e
Foreign currency INERHBAEL
forward contracts ks
outflow 8,299 13,782 2,510 24,591 24,591
Cross currency interest & X EHEH|%=
rate swap/interest B/ FI%
rate swap (inflow) BHARA)
outflow i (10,083) 60,574 12,571 63,112 63,112
(1,734) 74,356 15,081 87,703 87,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are
determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using
quoted forward exchange rates and applicable yield curve
matching the maturities of the contracts. The fair values
of cross currency interest rate swap are determined
based on the quoted forward exchange rates and yield
curves of relevant interest rates matching the maturities
of the contracts.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

All the financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at fair value are grouped into Level 2 financial assets and
financial liabilities based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable, Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

BFAREERMBEIR(Z)

AFE

MBEERMBRAB(IRENTETLR)
ZRHEDRFTRAERED N KR
TARRRERBELARAEEEAETE -

SNEEEIIA 2 R ETIIRERA PR
HEXRFESOIHBMRET 2 ERE
EHGRZMRBASREINERE - XX
BN RS 87 NP ETIR TR BE
KR EANIHHRAAR 2 ARAF R ZE
EHRET -

EERR/REEVBHRRTIZEHAA
R BEERYHABEZREESR
HAFEMEE -

MBRAFEAEZMBEERMBA
BHNEATEZABREERERSE?2
EMBEERVBAR F2BAFE
AFEXREBREEXABZEEBAIM
ER)XKRZE(ANREEER)ABEEHA
SR (REBRIN) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

6. Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns and
rental income of LPG bottles for the year. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

A

WA Ty A KBS R P
SRR EMDR 2 & BOLFTN - B8
BB KR ) RASRIERBEA 2 A
FE - HHFMT -

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Sale and distribution of LPG HE R HRIER 9,151,443 7,216,004
Sale of electronic components HEETZMH 733,470 897,650
Sale of mobile phones SHE F 1 208,245 347,771
Rental of LPG bottles HERIERIM 23,485 16,290
10,116,643 8,477,715
7. Segment Information SHEEE

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location
of the goods being sold. These revenue streams and
the basis of the internal reports about components of
the Group are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG through Zhuhai
terminal and in the international market

2. Sales and distribution of LPG through retail
networks in the PRC and Macau

3. Sales of electronic products

m NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

7. SWEHE)

SR A B R

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2011

AT RIEE

BOBMEEDRE D 2K

SERAREEDH

#HFE2011F 12831 HILFE

Sales and CEICEN
distribution of distribution of
LPG through LPG through
Zhuhai terminal retail
and in the networks in
international the PRC
market and Macau
Fd%E E8TE Sale of
BERE RAMSE electronic
BERTRHE fane products Consolidated
RABRLE RABRILE HEETER &8
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue kL ON 7,576,205 1,598,723 941,715 10,116,643
Segment profit DERT 283,386 17,101 66,441 366,928
Interest income on pledged RMB ~ BEIFARER 7772
bank deposits FEWA 71,718
Other interest income HthF S WA 5,175
Interest income from entrusted EEERFBHA
loan 160,710
Central administration costs and ~ FREERAREZHE
directors’ salaries (40,679)
Changes in fair values of derivative #14BE T EATEL
financial instruments Pt 8,495
Impairment on goodwill BERNE (40,000)
Interests on bank trust receipts AAREFIFZERD
loans pledged with RMB bank BAETREERZ
deposits HE (60,877)
Other finance costs ARERA (144,526)
Profit before taxation BB A 332,944
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

7.

Segment Information (Continued)

7. SWEHE)

Segment revenues and results (Continued) SHBBMARER(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 EFE2010F 12831 HILFE
Sales and
distribution of Sales and
LPG through distribution of
Zhuhai terminal LPG through
and in the retail networks
international in the PRC and
market Macau
BB g oLy Sale of
BERE RRHZE electronic
BB mEHEE BRHEER products Consolidated
RO ERICA LR HEETEM e
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue ETON 5,904,895 1,327,399 1,245,421 8,477,715
Segment profit DERT 216,356 50,537 77,843 344,736
Interest income on pledged RMB ~ BEBARERTEF2
bank deposits FEHA 47,088
Other interest income Ef | SHA 2,192
Interest income from entrusted ZHERZHEHLA
loan 2,600
Central administration costs and ~ FREERARESHS
directors’ salaries (49,784)
Change in fair values of derivative TS ETAATFEZ
financial instruments ¥& (82,087)
Interests on bank trust receipts AARERIFZERN
loans pledged with RMB bank RITfEFEMEERZ
deposits g (40,946)
Other finance costs AfhpERA (68,348)
Profit before taxation BRBERT & A 155,451

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #EsEREBER AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011

ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers. Segment profit represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and directors’ salaries, impairment
on goodwill, changes in fair values of derivative financial
instruments, interests income on pledged RMB bank
deposits, other interest income, interest income from
entrusted loan, interests on bank trust receipts loans
pledged with RMB bank deposits and other finance
costs.

SERHE)
FRWBARER(Z)

EBNBPZEABREAEEGTHR
MR - EXFEHRZAADBRAIG K
BINBEP - pBENEE D BARDE
TREEXNARESHE BERE-
TEMBTARFEZNE - EEFA
RERITERZNBUA ~ EMF B
A RFEERZHBWA - MARKR
TTEF IR RTT S FEBIRAE R B
H Ao g & R AFTREZ & A o
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SEWEHE)

SERERAR

DEEE

UTAREEHBES 2 AEBEER
B -

=)

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT

Sales and distribution of LPG ERIKGTEEE &

through Zhuhai terminal and in the fr BB M5 E &
international market DHEBRIER 3,236,231 1,561,433
Sales and distribution of LPG through i@ B EBRFHZE

retail networks in the PRC and PERHE R D
Macau HBRIER 634,735 489,197
Sale of electronic products HEETEM 457,296 513,066
Total segment assets WA EE 4,328,262 2,563,696
Available for sale investment AEHERE 3,701 3,526
Deferred tax assets RIERTEE E 1,781 1,610
Bank balances and cash IRTTAEBR MRS 877,595 380,181
Pledged bank deposits B IRRITE K 4,209,577 2,035,865
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTE 74,530 44,023
Entrusted loan ZEEX 644,423 638,053

Properties under development HEERRTME
for sales 185,867 —
Other unallocated assets HERKDBL&EE 296,399 132,645
Consolidated assets meEE 10,622,135 5,799,599
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

SEBEHE)

AWAERARE)

DERR

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Sales and distributions of LPG FEBIRGIESE K
through Zhuhai terminal and in the e BIFR 135 $H 8
international market DRI R 1,239,981 496,540
Sales and distribution of LPG through F:@5E KHRFAEE
retail networks in the PRC and FERIHE R
Macau DEBIER 75,351 33,802
Sale of electronic products HEETEM 129 20,247
Total segment liabilities BAOKEEE 1,315,461 550,589
Derivative financial instruments PTEMTA 106,727 88,172
Tax liabilities RBaE 44,790 26,401
Deferred tax liabilities BTG A E 21,461 20,376
Borrowings B 7,227,727 3,595,575
Other unallocated liabilities Hiv RO AE 58,434 39,895
Consolidated liabilities maBE 8,774,600 4,321,008

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances

and allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments
(other than available for sale investment, deferred
tax assets, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, derivative financial instruments, entrusted
loan and certain other assets, certain other
receivables, properties under development for sales

and certain property, plant and equipment); and

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and

certain other payables).

5L

il

EESBRARDEZRERDEM

BERESEAREHRD AR
ERE BERBEE - RITHE
#kRE  SHEMRTHER - 74
MBTR ZRERRETHME
E - ETHEMEKER FEER
hMERETYE - HELRER
5N R

MEREIERERY (AN
EEHBEE - RITER - OTEM
B TRNETHEMBENRERIN) o
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2011

7.

SEWEHE)

HthaWRHE

BFE2011F 12831 HILFE

Sales and
distribution of Sales and
LPG through distribution of
Zhuhai terminal LPG through
and inthe retail networks
international  in the PRC and
market Macau Sale of
EAKEER EATER electronic
REERTEHE ANSERENHE products Unallocated Consolidated
RABKLR RABKLR PEETER b330 ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the REGEVIED
measure of segment profit PRRER
or segment assets: HAZEE:
Addition to non-current asset  REFERENAE
(Note) ) 284,895 13,922 - 185,867 484,684
Depreciation of property, VERY SHE-
plant and equipment Vil 31,703 22,323 - 118 54,144
Amortisation of other intangible ~ E4t EF/EEZH
assets - 3,977 - - 3,977
Amortisation of land use rights TR & 2,106 685 - = 2,791
Amortisation of prepaid lease  [EFEMEEH
payments for coast B 825 = = = 825
Loss (qain) on disposal and & RiisEE -
written off of property, plant ~ EEEREEE
and equipment (k) (188) 40 - - (148)
Shares of profit of a jointly AMa—FRR A
controlled entity B = (927) = = (927)
Amounts reqularly provided to ~ EEEBEEETEMLRRE
the chief operating decision BRBEADERN
maker but not included in FBRANBEEL
the measure of segment 8
profit or loss or segment
assets:
Impairment of goodwil EAnERE
recognised - 40,000 - - 40,000
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B F 20114 12 531 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBEHEHE)
Other segment information (Continued) Hth S E|EE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 EE2010F12H31 HILFE
Sales and
distribution of Sales and
LPG through distribution of
Zhuhai terminal LPG throug
and in the retail networks
international in the PRC
market and Macau Sale of
FRKEEE  FETEREN electronic
REBBTIZEE TERREE products Unallocated Consolidated
RAERER R RIS HEETEM AR 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT T AT TET
Amounts included in the REGEVIED
measure of segment profit PREER
or segment assets: HAZEE:
Addition to non-current asset  ERIERENAE
(Note) H#) 33,929 91,163 = 413 125,505
Depreciation of property, % BERSE
plant and equipment Vil 27,882 16,063 2 145 44,092
Amortisation of other intangible ~ Hfb B/ AEE
assets — 3,820 — — 3,820
Amortisation of land use rights T3 FIiE& 2,048 652 - - 3,600
Amortisation of prepaid lease  ERERBENE
payments for coast g 786 - - - 786
Loss (qain) on disposal and (& RiisEE -
written off of property, BaEkRE ER
plant and equipment (hz2) 73 (173) - - (100)
Shares of profit of a jointly ME—FEREH
controlled entity BRI = (239) = = (239)
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and Hret . SERBEETEEYBTANELEREASR

deferred tax assets.

BE o
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ELZE20114F 12531 HIFFE

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHEGE)
Geographical information mEZHE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong REBZEEEBUNREA(FTELE
(country of domicile) and the PRC, Thailand, Philippines WE) P FTEH- FEEREME
and other countries. £
Information about the Group’s revenue from operations REBINBEFHIEN BT 2 EFE U
from external customers is presented based on ARBEBEEEEMIENE DY ZIER
customers’ location of the operations. Information about FEECEAMFINAT

the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on
the geographical location of the assets:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
SMEBERUA ERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#iT FET FET FETT
Hong Kong BB

(country of domicile) (F EZEME) 240,701 160,209 5,645 20,184
The PRC (excluding A&

Hong Kong) (T"BEED) 6,430,512 4,195,631 1,481,079 992,501
Thailand Zx 2,371,215 3,206,121 - =
Philippines JERE 589,305 294,273 — —
Other countries HMER 484,910 621,481 7,155 7,511
Total A5 10,116,643 8,477,715 1,493,879 1,020,196
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and Kiat ERBEETBIREEERBEEE R

financial instruments. BIER -
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7. Segment Information (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the

total sales of the Group in year 2011 and corresponding
figures in 2010 are as follows:

NEBEHEE)
BEREEERZEH
R2011F - U FNABRFERMASEEE

EHBEA0% A EZ2 WA » X2010F 2
HBEHT :

2011 2010

Customer A ZFEA
Customer B =ZFB

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
1,565,933 480,168
1,429,500 1,233,200

Note: Revenue generated from Customers A and B are related to
the LPG business. The revenue generated from Customer
A was less than 10% of the total sales of the Group in
year 2010.

8. Other Income, Interest Income from Entrusted
Loan and Net Exchange gain

8.

Bit - BEEARBEFEBARIESNKAERL
REBER - EEAFELEMNRAL
AEBR2010FHBEHEE Z210% &

B

Htir A » REEERFIB WA RE
RIAGDBN

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FETT
Interest income F 2 YA 5,175 2,192
Others HAth 3,489 4,978
8,664 7,170

Interest income from entrusted loan ZEERF B WA
(Note 1) (HiaE1) 160,710 2,600
Net exchange gain (Note 2) bE H I8 RE (At 2) 175,314 58,462
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HZ2011F 12431 HIFFEZE
8. Other Income, Interest Income from Entrusted 8.

Loan and Net Exchange Gain (Continued)

Notes:

1. The interest income is related to entrusted loan based
on the terms set out in the agreement. The detail of the
entrusted loan is set out in note 37.

2. The amount included net exchange gain arising from
pledged RMB bank deposits for USD borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$148,078,000 (2010:
HK$66,097,000).

9. Other Finance Costs 9.

HtugA - FREERFIBMARE
RIEBDBW|(E)

Hit -
1. RBBEEOER FBRARER
EHER - EREEERANIEOT -

2. =HEECEMARBRITERR
ELERMELE ZE LB RIFHRLD
148,078,000% 7t(2010 : 66,097,000
)

HttpE &

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Interests on bank trust receipts loans  R1TE U IR ER 2 F & 93,158 32,596
Interests on bank borrowings wholly ARAFNEHEEZRTT

repayable within five years & A A 51,368 35,855

Less: Amounts capitalised 0 BAMEEEE - (103)

144,526 68,348

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2010 arose from a bank loan borrowed for the
construction of gas plant and facilities in Zhuhai.
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10. Taxation Charge

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

10. IRIBTH

RiFAEmE B ERAMRZHIRBHE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Other regions in the PRC Hp B H At b [
Current tax BN EAFR 18 29,917 17,914
Deferred tax (note 33) EIEFL A (H15F 33)
Current year REFEE 2) 153
29,915 18,067

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, #1880 R (KB ) ER QAR ("¥/E(ZKE)") is entitled
to exemption from the PRC enterprise income tax for
the two years starting from its first profit making year,
following by a 50% tax relief for the next three years. The
tax charge provided has been made after taking these
tax incentive into account. The first profit making year of
¥/ (2k/E) was 2006. Year 2010 was the last year to
obtain tax relief under relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC. Starting from year 2011, the tax charge for ¥1/&8 (I
/&) is changed to 25% from 1 January 2011 onwards.

BAEMNBHR M EFE 2 A R
BEMEREA16.5%1HE °

RIEFEAREMBE L EREBFIA D
EMBHIE] R EMEREE K
Bl - REIHIE AR AH2008F1 51 HE
BAZER25% °

R4 P B A AR FED - #1888 0R (R
H)AERARFHEEE)DEE— @
ERFERRERRPRECEMSHM
FoBEBE—FEZARFEBRER - 5
B ER  ZEBBERELERE
We#FBEHB)ZE —MEMNFER
20064 ° 2010 F R R & —FHRBH
MR AR TEHIRE ESR G ER - o
(e 2 BHES HA2011F1 818
HEI A 25% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

10. Taxation Charge (Continued)

10.

Except for the profit generated by subsidiaries in Hong
Kong is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward,
there is no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Company and other subsidiaries had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

RIS (&)

BB BB A R E AL 2 E I 2 BUAK
ERBEREEI  ARANARREM
MEBAREDEL |ERTEN - Eitt
A MISmR L EL BB TS LB
o

FRAZBRAXHAIREE2EEERZ
EFEERIT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
F# FET
Profit before taxation B 351 Bl A 332,944 155,451
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% BRI R 25% 5T B 2 Fi18 83,236 38,863
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR H 2 Fif5 522
for tax purpose 15,619 26,813
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAEZFHRBAZ BT E
tax purpose (34,013) (15,497)
Tax effect of profit which are RBREXTRIWE RS2
exempted from tax or under tax B2
concessions (70,515) (59,697)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIEBE 2 MG 2
recognised 32,971 25,838
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERAI R E R ERE 2
differences not recognised Mg & 4,343 2,605
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B % B RFER 2 Fi 1B &8
recognised (1,726) (353)
Taxation charge for the year FRTIEZ H 29,915 18,067

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise
income tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of
the Group is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out
in note 33.
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HZ2011F 12431 HIFFEZE
11. Profit Before Taxation

11.

2011 2010

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Amortisation of land use rights
(included in administrative expenses)

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast (included in cost

of sales)

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation for property, plant and

equipment

Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under

operating leases:
— Premises
Staff costs

Directors’ fees (note 12)

BRI AR M E B (BT A)
NAIIER -

o 50 A A S
(BRETBXHA)

BRENEE RS
(BREHEEKAA)

H{th # 12 & E 5
(BREHEKREA)

ZEET BN &

ME - HBELRETE

HEME - I RREBZ
Yo e
REBORERES -

— g5
BB A
EEWE M 12)

Directors’ other emoluments (note 12) EEH & (H1L12)

Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes excluding HK$84,000
(2010: HK$90,000) included
in directors’ emoluments

Staff salaries and bonus

B 84,0008 7T(2010 :
90,000 87T) EET A
EEM e 2 RINEF
FTEIE K

ET#HSMES

FRRATRF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
2,791 3,600
825 786
3,977 3,820
2,800 2,300
54,144 44,092
(148) (100)
11,934 9,666
330 380
6,802 9,178
3,469 2,487
47,102 33,517
57,703 45,562
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

12. Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2010:
11) directors were as follows:

Chiu
Sing Shum

Shum  Chung, Cen Chun,
SiuHung  Raymond Ziniu  Lawrence
£ il ¢ 14 £

12. EF#<

Siu

Ka Fai,
Brian
B i) etk it

B EN F10/(2010 : 114AL)ES

BEAZBET

Cheung

Kwan  Chan Yuk

Hung, Wai, Xu
Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe

HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
fér FEr FET T  TEr  fEr  fEr  FET  FET  TET  TER
Fees e = - - - - - - 180 100 100 330
Other emoluments Highe
Salaries and other benefts SRR 3000 1,080 647 350 462 762 7 - - - 68
Contributons o refirement (323
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 - - - 84
Total emoluments Heas 3,012 1,062 659 362 474 4 459 180 100 100 1,132
Chiy Wu Cheung
Sing Shum Hong Siu Kwan  Chan Yuk
Shum— Chung, Cen Chun, Cho Ca KaFa,  Wang  Hung, Wai, Xu Total
SiuHung  Raymond Zniu Lawrence  (Mr. W) Xkun Brian Jan  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe Rir
BEE
20 #RR 5% 22 (BrEl) B B5e I ORE REBE BEE 2010
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAr  TEr  Tér  TEr  Tér T FAr  TEr TEr Thr TEr fEr
Fees o3 = = = = - - - - 130 100 150 30
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits &4 REM T 3000 165 1046 305 137 99 1243 783 - - - 0088
Contributions o retirement  &AEH3EIE
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 6 12 12 12 - - - 90
Total emoluments Heag 3012 1887 1,098 337 143 941 1,266 795 130 100 150 9,558

Note: The disclosed emoluments for Mr. Wu represent the
emoluments received or receivable before his resignation
on 14 June 2010.

No director waived any emoluments during both years.
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HZ2011F 12431 HIFFEZE

13. Employees’ emoluments 13. EREl&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REE S &mBALTEE=((2010 :
Group, three (2010: four) are directors of the Company WA A REIESE - EfeE#N Ll
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. TEERA - EHMAL(2010: —fZ) AL
The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: one) were ZHEEENT -

14.

disclosed as follows:

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Salaries and allowances e Kz 2,116 975
Contributions to retirement benefit R KEF 2]
schemes fHX 24 12
2,140 987
2011 2010
No. of No. of
employees employees
ERHWA (==E24=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & T2 1,500,000 /8 7T 1 —
DIVIDEND 14. BR2
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
2010 final dividend recognised as FRERBDIKZ20104F

distribution during the year — RERE — B 1.07810

HK1.0 cent (2009 final dividend: (2009 FARHAMR B -

HK1.0 cent) per share 1.0781U) 13,058 11,558
Subsequent to 31 December 2011, the directors R2011FE12 A31 HE @ EFZFERARN
proposed a final dividend of HK2.3 cents (2010: HK1.0 20125 A28 H AR REZM 2 AR
cent) per share to be paid to the shareholders of the AR RIRERHARE - BRI E 2.3%8
Company whose names appear on the register of ili(2010 : 1.081(L) - WL REAIR BERF
members 28 May 2012. This final dividend is subject to BREREERFBFAEG FHAER - 7
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual AI{EE - R2012F 3 A16H @ B #1T
general meeting. On 16 March 2012, the number of R 2R 8B 7 1,305,853,374 % °

shares issued and fully paid is HK$1,305,853,374.
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HZ2011F 12431 HIFFEZE

15. Earnings Per Share 15. BREH
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per ARNRZERERFEABGESRER
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the RESERA TR TSI SHEREE

Company is based on the following data:

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FREIT FET
Earnings 2%
Earnings for the purposes of basic ~ & &RER KX
and diluted earnings per share e B AT A
(profit for the year attributable to ZBR(RRBHEE A
the owners of the Company) (S ERREF) 306,159 136,647
Number of shares Bip®H
Weighted average number of AESRERRT
ordinary shares for the purpose A 2 &
of basic earnings per share DA 19 £ 1,305,853,374 1,179,278,032
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares SR SRS %
Share options BE A% 42 19,822,931 17,793,666
Weighted average number of FESREERT
ordinary shares for the purposes TRz EBiR
of diluted earnings per share hntE e 2 1,325,676,305 1,197,071,698

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BTSRRI AT
For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. 5k - BRI

Gas  Gas pumps Furniture,
Construction Leasehold Plant and plant and and fixtures and Motor
in progress Buildings  improvements machinery facilities equipment equipment vehicles
ERIE B% HEWRKE  BBRGE 2 WERBE  WRRBR &KW RERER it |
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT 7.7 AT AT AL TET AT TET 7.7
COsT B3
At 1 January 2010 B010E1R1A 19,531 21,993 2,576 1269 475,782 171,711 10,606 14429 117,897
Adaftions RE 91,506 104 o - 14218 9,280 1,889 1416 124,834
Acquired on acquistion KE-FHERAHE
of a subsidlary - - - - - 360 28 283 671
Transfer g (85,147) 8843 - - 30,03 6,052 ull - -
Disposals and wrte-off HE RS - - (19) - (60) (440) (54) (704) (1291)
Exchange realignment Efig 1874 97 10 4 9,367 6,229 37 603 19,491
At 31 December 2010 H20105124318 67,764 3197 2,004 1318 529,322 193,192 18,083 2,027 861,602
Additions RE 286,833 169 56 - 413 2597 m 8,032 208,817
Transfer &2 (50,327) 854 - 1,834 44,967 2,612 - - -
Disposals and wrie-off HERHH - - 299) - - (670) (106) (1,159) 2.23)
Exchange realignment Effng - 1611 14 112 25,009 9,507 579 1,066 37,888
At 31 December 2011 011124318 304,270 3457 2,766 3259 599,711 207,298 14,243 2997 1,196,075
DEPRECIATION AND fERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 B010E1R18 - 6,504 2,084 293 68,949 53200 1528 6,756 145,426
Provided for the year gk = 213 48 8 23,440 14531 840 2720 44,092
Eiminated on dlsposals RHERMEREH
and writg-off - - ) - ] (89) (49) (548) (799)
Exchange realignment EfRg - 25 7 12 1,646 2,104 241 %5 4580
At 31 December 2010 R010E124318 = 9,014 2431 383 93,962 69,792 8,564 9,193 193,339
Provided for the year iR = 2859 144 58 29,238 16,638 1,032 417 54,144
Eiminated on dlsposals RHE RIS
and writg-off - - (45) = - (229 (53) (1,036) (1,363
Exchange realignment EiAE - 51 14 2 3007 31 38 413 8171
At 31 December 2011 R0 E12/318 - 12,304 2,544 462 126,227 89,928 9,931 12,805 254291
CARRYING VALUES L fil
At 31 December 2011 R011E12/318 304,270 211 22 2797 473,484 17370 4312 17,152 941,784
At 31 December 2010 R010127318 67,764 293 563 930 435,360 123400 4489 12834 668,263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold improvements 20% to 33'/,%

Plant and machinery 5% to 33'/;%

Gas plant and facilities Over the shorter of the

lease term of coast use
right and land use right,

or 20 years
Gas pumps and equipment  10% to 33"/,%
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 16%/,%
equipment
Motor vehicles 16°/,% to 33'/,%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the
PRC, and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas plant under construction are situated outside
Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under medium term
leases.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately
HK$6,944,000 (2010: HK$7,072,000) included in gas
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for
short term to generate rental income. The rental income
generated was approximately HK$23,485,000 (2010:
HK$16,290,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

16. 5k - BRI ()

gF R4 F 8

HEYEEE 20% %= 33'/,%

W28 N 55 A 5% %= 33'/,%

RUE K AT RgREAERLT
HfsE FAREFR AV F
Hisk 20 FHY 2 8%
RokA

RR K& 10% & 33"/,%

Rl - HE 15% &= 16°/,%

S
aE 16%/:% % 33'/,%

BF IR E(FBRI) - WA H
Bt EFA -

ERERBEHURTE(FAREIN) LA
REARARA -

AT ARRE K& 496,944,000 T
(2010 : 7,072,0008 75 ) Z BAL BIR TS
NEBHERBETFTERS UELERASK
A REZE2011F12 A31 B IEFEFT
EE 2 E W A4 A23,485,00078 7T
(2010 : 16,290,000 7T ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

17. Land Use Rights 17. e AE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
The Group’s land use rights ANEEE 2 £ i fsF A
comprise: BiE
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, RHE(FHEHEN)
in the PRC under medium term AR ERFH A3 B 2
leases - b f5F R A 253,866 67,511
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RZ2FR B DT :
Non-current asset EMBEE 250,842 64,631
Current asset MENEE 3,024 2,880
253,866 67,511

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai through purchase of
a subsidiary (the “Land”). Details of the acquisition are
set out in note 35. The size of the Land is 15,750 square
meters. The cost of the Land acquired was approximately
HK$165,628,000. During the year ended 31 December
2011, there were approximately HK$100,916,000
additional cost for relocating the existing residents
and for demolishing the buildings on the Land. The
management of the Group consider that those additional
cost formed part of the total cost of the Land. The Group
will develop half of the Land to construct a property for
owner-occupied purpose and half for properties for sale.
The detail of property under development for sale is
disclosed in note 27.

REZE2011F12A31BIEFERN A&
EEBEA—RNEQRKE —RBARKE
2HEE L M([ZLi]) o WEZFBEHR
Bf5E35 © 5% & H I 78 & 15,750 F 75 K © Fff
U B8 + b 2 Ak AR %) £ 165,628,00078 7T © B4
HE2011F12A31BLFERN EE X
T FIRAERRBEFEF ZEINKALD A
100,916,000 87C - ASEEIR ER AL S5
ONPZSTE R RZ T B AN 2 AR Ef i o R &
Bzt —FRREAEEZ—BEETEH
M —FRBREAFEME FEER
R 2 BRI EE 27 #5258 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

18. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast

19.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7&

18. BERMHEARE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
The Group’s prepaid lease AEBZBFEMNEEFRE
payments for coast comprise: BIE
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the AR B (FBIRHN) - I LA B
PRC under medium term leases HARE 2 8F 11,657 11,912
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RZ2FHR B DT
Non-current asset EmBEE 10,811 11,106
Current asset MBNEE 846 806
11,657 11,912
The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the BEBNAEREIERKEZ BRE

rights to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28
years, starting from 1 January 1999.

F#E - B199941 A1 B @ HEH
NF20FEE 28 -

Goodwill 19. B8

HK$’000

FAET

COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2010 R2010%F1 H1H 120,509
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) W B —RMIB AR (M7t 36) 5,523
Exchange realignment b X 2 4,192
At 31 December 2010 R®2010F12 A31H 130,224
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (40,000)
Exchange realignment b 5 A2 6,205
At 31 December 2011 R2011%F 12 A31H 96,429
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31 December 2011 R2011%F12 A31H 96,429
At 31 December 2010 ©®2010F12 A31H 130,224

RERERARLD A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

19. Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to nine (2010: nine) individual
CGUs in the sale and distribution of LPG segments.
Eight (2010: eight) CGUs are included in the segment
of sale and distribution of LPG through retail network
in the PRC and Macau. The remaining one (2010: one)
CGU is included in the segment of sale and distribution
of overseas LPG through Zhuhai terminal and in the
international market.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the management
of the Group determined that there was an impairment
of HK$40,000,000 (2010: nil) for the goodwill of three
CGUs (“Impaired CGUs”) which are included in segment
of sales and distribution of LPG through retail networks
in the PRC and Macau. There was no impairment of the
other CGUs containing goodwill. Due to keen market
competition in the locations of the Impaired CGUs,
the revenue of the Impaired CGUs in 2011 was behind
management’s expectation, the management revised its
cash flow projections of the Impaired CGUs with the key
assumptions set out below.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these units have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and discount rate of 12% (2010: 13%). The cash
flows for the financial budgets are using a steady growth
rate ranging from 4% to 10% (2010: 4% to 15%) for a
5-year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period
are extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

19.

m#(E)

HBEARMS  EXFHEZHER
PEEHERDHEHRIERS B ZNAE
(2010 : Mlﬂlﬁuiﬁiéiﬁu ° 1B iE
FEMBFZEERGHE R HRER
’ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁ)ﬂl@mo CN\E)IRESEAS
fif o g8 N —1ME(2010 : — @) S5zt A BB
HEGERERBE TS EINEE R D H
BIERDEE -

HE2011F12831BLEE - K&
BEBEEETE —FEt AFZBHEHRKBM
TEPEREERDERIERDEZRS
B 4 B 2 782 H 38 40,000,000 7 7T
(2010 : B)REBE(IERERSE
EBEM]) MEFBCHEMBRESESS
ERE - ERERERSEEEM
itz miEnF 82 ERERESE
EBMR20MEZIMABREERE 2
TEH - MEBEEEIIERERESEE
EDLLZEE%/IILE%E\ E'J EE;:TE:H—L%EJQD
‘|T °

NEReELABM 2 AIREESE &
REFERBEEBMLT

ZEBNLZAKREBEELREEAER
n-l—:—:/ffﬁgiﬁ © ;/(H+ ;i%ﬁﬁﬁ B EEE?HZ
/EZ5¢HHH7TWTE/(~*EPZfﬁi/ubifﬁ
B R 373 E12% (2010 : 13%) 51 & o
ﬁ?fﬁkfﬁﬁ;ziﬁ§//|L§LA5EEHZ%%:E
R E4%FE10% (2010 : 4% £ 15%)
T&%ﬁ ° ¢t5¢gﬂ?§2ﬁi//m§1«/\fi =
AT o EFWE:‘I’IEimJ\/MLHHQﬁH
BEFAEZZEMTIFERRBIEREHE
ERENE  ZETRBRBEEMBE
FENEBRER 2 TISEREMEL -
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20. Other Intangible Assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

20. Rt =

Distribution Business Leasing
network license agreements
o Him EXuR HER®
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET FET
COST %3
At 1 January 2010 20101 A1H 2,655 7,641 13,806 24,002
Exchange adjustments P& 5 R 89 145 479 713
At 31 December 2010 2010612 A31 H 2,644 7,786 14,285 24,715
Exchange adjustments b W R 131 214 709 1,054
At 31 December 2011 201112 431 H 2,775 8,000 14,994 25,769
AMORTISATION AND MR wE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 R2010%F1A1H 398 1,468 6,175 8,041
Charge for the year FAZH 258 1,114 2,448 3,820
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 3 B 21 56 279 356
At 31 December 2010 M2010F 12 A31 H 677 2,638 8,902 12,217
Charge for the year FAZH 271 1,136 2,570 3,977
Exchange adjustments P& 5 R 40 99 507 646
At 31 December 2011 201112 A31H 988 3,873 11,979 16,840
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2011 R2011§12A31H 1,787 4,127 3,015 8,929
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31 H 1,967 5,148 5,383 12,498

The distribution network, the business license and the
subcontracting agreements were acquired from third
parties in business combinations.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives.
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the following periods:

Distribution network
Business license
Leasing agreements

10 years

5 to 10 years
5 to 9 years

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

DEBPE  EXEHNREABRSRDER

BattRmE=ZTEA

REAERE R ERES - %
ST A LA B ARORTE LA T ER R B ¢

BEHR
HE e
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S AL YA £ 2
RE SRR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity

21, —RAFAZFHERED

THE GROUP
EE
2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET F&T
Cost of unlisted investment R—RERZESERE LT
in a jointly controlled entity B KA 13,073 13,073
Share of post-acquisition profits, FiE AR - BEEE
impairment loss and other N CH fth 2 Y e
comprehensive income (3,872) (5,212)
9,201 7,861

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had
interest in the following jointly controlled entity:

Form of
business
structure

Principal
place of
operation

Country of

Name of entity incorporation

KRER REERER ERMSIER ERERME

EMTEHMEABE A Incorporated  PRC PRC
([18%)) (Note) (4fit)  EafAL e e

Note: The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its jointly
controlled entity is in proportion to its ownership interest
after the sub-contracting period mentioned in the following
paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qingxin
Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company Limited (“BFY”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the joint
venture partner of &% (the “Venturer’) on 3 November
2006, the operation of &% has been sub-contracted to
BFY with a sub-contracting period of 8 years.

R2011 E K 2010F 12 A31 H » &
EEWEE T EEIEH R 2 s

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital
held by the Group Nature of business
FEEFEZ
EMEFEELD RHHE
2011 2010

Fully paid up
registered capital

EBRERRE

RMB2,250,000 49% 49% Sale and distribution
AR 2,250,0007C of LPG
HERDBERIR
Kt AEBHEEREFIEE 2GS Z

s TR A T BSER R e K 2 A B i
BREMGZER ZHAEERLHIF

st
= o
A

REARRZ2EMBRRBHHR
EAARETERAR(BEEF]) R
BHzaeBH(EEE )N2006
F11 A8 AR ZH# - B 2EH
EAMITEEF - SNBSS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amount of the jointly
controlled entity and its major underlying assumptions are
summarised below:

The recoverable amount of the jointly controlled entity
has been determined based on a value in use calculation,
which is determined based on the Group’s share of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
That calculation uses cash flow projection based on the
financial budget approved by management covering a
5-year period (the “Budget Period”), and discount rate of
12% (2010: 13%). The cash flows for the financial budget
use a steady growth rate of 4% (2010: 4%) for the first
5 years of the Budget Period. The cash flows beyond
this 5-year period is extrapolated using a zero percent
growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflow/
outflow which include budgeted sales, and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the jointly controlled entity’s
past performance and management expectations for
market development.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interest in jointly controlled entity which is
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

21.

—RIiAEFERES(F)

Hiat

- (&)

FAERRZENER 2 AIRE SR E
ERETZEMERRMANT

R I E B 2 T Uk O] & 58 TH AR IR 1
)ﬂfﬁfﬁuﬁt/ﬁ;ﬁm BEDBEANE
DMEBERKRBRESREZEEER
#IE °© uxu+§/£i7ﬁﬁﬁ B 1%@5&“&2
SFH([BEH DV BKBERP 2R
£ mETE B &I R12% (2010 :
13%) st B - BB BERZEE R
ENEEHESFZRETHRE4%
(2010 : 4%) H#Hf - W5 FHifE 2 3]
SMEATE R L - GRS R
A REERABEMEACHEMES
R BIETEEHEE REFE - ZME5T
EIREAREHEE 2 BAEENRE
BEEt 2 iSEEMEL o

AEB AR GDHEAR 2 LFZEHE

ke E

SIS E MBI EER ST

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET FET

Current assets mENEE 2,085 1,140

Non-current assets FERBEE 5,815 5,927

Current liabilities U E=KE (58) (38)

Income recognised in profit or loss  AEZEFER Z YA 36,790 33,699
Expenses recognised in profit or RIBEER 2

loss (35,863) (33,460)

Other comprehensive income H b 2 U 413 1,452
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T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE
22. Other Assets 22, Hthig&E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Deposit for acquisition of LPG W ENBRERRLL 2 &R E
stations in Guangzhou (Note a) (Hfita) 104,848 99,891
Deposit for purchase of property, BEWME  MEREBEoZS
plant and equipment 1,068 25,722
Deposit for acquisition of Bt¥raelR  WRBEHTELIR 2 & (At b)
(Note b) 69,967 —
175,883 125,613
Notes: /}/7‘5‘3:'_ .

(@) The amount represents the deposit paid by the Group
to a lawyer firm for it to act as the agent for acquisition
of LPG stations in Guangzhou. Pursuant to the agency
agreement signed between the Group and the lawyer firm
RMB85,000,000 (2010: RMB85,000,000) (equivalent to
approximately HK$104,848,000 (2010: HK$99,891,000))
was deposited to the lawyer firm as a refundable deposit
in December 2010, to arrange the acquisition of not less
than 15 LPG stations in Guangzhou and handle the related
share transfer procedures. Up to the date of this report,
no acquisition agreements have been signed.

(b)  The amount represents the deposit paid by the Group
for acquisition of B#F78E/R in the PRC. The details of the

@ ZKBEHEAKER - REMTIN
ZiRE - DAEH TR E N R
FANRUE 2 R o RIFAEEEZ
BEITHEE ZREWHE - R2010F
123 - A K #85,000,0007L(2010 :
A R %#85,000,0007T )(1 & 1 4
104,848,000 7T(2010 : 99,891,000
BIL)) B F BN s E T E R IR E
BE o LR B EMN T DR 15 &
fEmnEs - R iE AR A () 8 F
B-BEARERH  HAEEURE
fhesk ©

(o)  F&RIRIE AN ER [ ph 7 B G Bt o
RZBENEE - WiE 2 FIFHN M T

acquisition are set out in note 37(C). 37(C) °
23. Inventories 23. F®

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAET FAET

LPG RAL SR 143,685 163,727

Electronic products B Em 289,910 306,000

433,595 469,727
The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated FANEHFEARERNB cFE
statement of comprehensive income for the year Bk 7N 49 A 9,689,988,0007% 7T (2010 :

amounted to approximately HK$9,689,988,000 (2010: 8,030,917,000/% 7T ) °

HK$8,030,917,000).

Annual Report 2011 —F——F &3 131




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 24, BIKE AR BUrSEE - HtE

132

Deposits and Prepayments

WiRR - ReERRAMRA

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Trade debtors JEUE HER K 1,939,828 749,481
Bills receivable FE U E i 188,095 6,880
2,127,923 756,361

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days.
The bills receivable are matured within the range of
30 days to 90 days for the year ended 31 December
2011. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors
and bills receivables at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice date:

AEEBZFHEEHROK &=
201112 A31 At FERKER 2 3
HEHNFI0XEINK - R2HFHR
2 B E 5 8RR K B IR AR BR B 0 1T 4%
HEAEESWT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETT

0 to 30 days 0Z 30K 864,702 371,195
31 to 60 days 31 260X 183,772 22,958
61 to 90 days 61290k 317,612 135,222
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 690,510 224,790
Over 180 days i 180K 71,327 2,196
2,127,923 756,361

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, are debtors of
approximately HK$150,769,000 (2010: HK$57,176,000)
denominated in USD, which is not the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Recoverability of the existing
customers is reviewed by the Group regularly. Included
in the Group’s trade receivable balance are receivables
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,252,925,000 (2010: HK$533,049,000), which are
neither past due nor impaired.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

AEE 2 EWE SFIEF + 47150,769,000
7 7t(2010 : 57,176,000 7T ) & %= T 7E
8 FZn B EE TR 2 IR EE -

AEBRZEREAHEL A LFEE
EEFPZEEER UREHEER-
AEBEENEHRATFPNERES -
BREASENESRUERT &
1,252,925,00087.(2010 : 533,049,000
BT RWE SERFNAEED T EB
HSORI(E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$874,998,000 (2010: HK$223,312,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical
default of payments by the respective customers. The
average age of these receivables is 131 days (2010: 100
days). As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
has no provision for allowance for doubtful debts.

Ageing of trade debtors based on the invoice date
which are past due but not impaired

24,

BRRSER - BlRE - HtE
WRER - BERAMRER(E)

AEE 2 RIE ZIRFHRREF - RREE
#7874,998,000 7 7r(2010 : 223,312,000
BID) ZEWER RN 2 AE B - BARE
B RERERERE - AEBWERSEE
AR ZEREER IR - BB RIER
B2 EWE ZERFERAREREE © 5k
R REWELERFIE - ZZEWER
K2 FHE# A131K(2010 - 100K) °
2011 F K 2010F 12 A31H » A& E
WA LR BRVE L B -

EBMERBEZENEHERERR
HRZ iE#e

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

61 to 90 days 61 Z 90K 169,749 234
91 to 180 days 91 180K 634,508 221,284
181 to 365 days 181 & 365 kX 70,741 1,794
Total EEr 874,998 223,312

Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits paid
to suppliers of approximately HK$411,381,000 (2010:
HK$369,893,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
which will be delivered within one year commencing from
the date of the signed purchase contract.

25. Amount Due to a Jointly Controlled Entity

As at 31 December 2010, the amount due to a jointly
controlled entity was approximately HK$458,000. The
amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

25.

HEMEREERY - BERBERERGE
REBHRESH BB —FRMAE)R
HERAEN 2B 5% % #411,381,000
#71(2010 : 369,893,000/87T) °

Bff—RERRHERRIE
MR20105E12 A31 H @ B —K R

I B B8 SRIH K /3 458,000 8 7T ° % KA
REEW  RERAREREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

26. Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and

Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term bank
loans, and are therefore classified as current assets. The
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$647,085,000
(2010: HK$265,282,000) carry at floating interest rates
which ranged from 0.5% to 2.9% (2010: 0.01% to 2.35%)
per annum and will be released upon settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings. The pledged bank deposits
included an amount of approximately HK$3,562,492,000
(2010: HK$1,770,583,000) carried at fixed interest rates
which ranged from 0.5% to 3.28% (2010: 0.01% to
2.79%) per annum and will be released upon settlement
of the relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 0.2% (2010: 0.01% to 0.36%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2011, the RMB pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$4,192,272,000 (2010:
HK$2,015,149,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

As at 31 December 2011, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$4,977,783,000 (2010: HK$2,346,235,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances, are approximately
HK$17,747,000 (2010: HK$31,647,000) denominated
in USD and approximately HK$3,553,178,000 (2010:
HK$1,133,657,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
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26.

EERRITER  BITRBERS

ZREERBETETIEARE B E
BRBRITBEZERZER 25
GREEBIEARHBETERZE
R B EERDEE - EXFE
17 17 3 #9647,085,0003 7T(2010 :
265,282,000 7T ) 1% )% &) F F| X 7
F0.5%%E2.9% (2010 : 0.01% &
2.35%) 5t B W N H R IRITE
RBEERER BRFRTERERE
A B #93,562,492,0005% 7T(2010 :
1,770,583,0007% 7t ) * & @ & F F =
N F0.5% % 3.28% (2010 : 0.01% &
2.79%)5T B - WK BBRITENSE
Br R o

RITEHBIZN F0.01% E0.2% (2010 :
0.01% = 0.36%) Z T 5 F FILET B o

20114912 A31 B »© #94,192,272,000
7 70(2010 : 2,015,149,000/8 7T ) Z A
REBHMIRITHFRE R IRITETUIR
BEE MR -

R2011FE12 831 H - 2HEMBITHER
MRTT#E8R IR £ #494,977,783,000 7 7T
(2010 : 2,346,235,000/8 ) AAREE
B WTAAEREHAEMEE - ~&
Bz ERMARITERRBITEHRT O
17,747,000 7£(2010 : 31,647,000
JC) AETTE(E + #93,553,178,0007% T
(2010 : 1,133,657,000# 7T ) Bl LA A R #&
EE ETEARBITIEAEEEEE
IR EE o
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27. Property Under Development for Sales

27. FERRDME

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&r FET

At cost £ DN
At the acquisition date MU EE B HA 82,814 =
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A 3,642 =
Additions hE 99,411 —
At the end of year RER 185,867 -

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties
for sale. The details of the Land are set out in note 17.
All the properties under development for sales are not
expected to be realised within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of
properties under development for sales is situated on
land in the PRC under medium term leases.

AEERZ IO —FERRABTED
Kot 2HBHNMEI7 - FTE
FERRTYEEHRHTIEEZHYR
BT_EARNER FERRDPYEL
BREEM AP i3 AP B AR
5o
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28. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

28. EftRHERRREFNRE

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&r FET
The aged analysis of trade creditors JEfIE 5 Rk 2 R
is as follows presented based on DITEEZAHESNWOT ¢
invoice date:
0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 337,726 182,133
31 to 60 days 31 E60X 67 6,795
61 to 90 days 61 ZE90K - 1,652
91 to 180 days 91 180K 318,283 —
Over 180 days Him 180K 118 1,589
656,194 192,069
The aged analysis of bills payables  JE[NZIEIZRE DT ¢
is as follows:
0 to 30 days 0Z 30k 175,451 84,942
31 to 60 days 31 260X 194,221 96,195
61 to 90 days 61290k 48,422 87,405
418,094 268,542
1,074,288 460,611

As at 31 December 2010, included in the Group’s
trade creditors and bills payable, there were amounts
of approximately HK$18,949,000 denominated in USD,
which was not the functional currency of the relevant

group entities.
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29.

Other Creditors and Accrued Charges

As at 31 December 2011, the other creditor included
a call option of RMB16,143,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,412,000) (2010: nil) granted to BMTHREZ 545
[RAF ("85 "), an independent third party, for allowing
# 55 to acquire 1,500 square meters of the properties
located on the Land to be completed by the Group.
This call option is exercisable upon the completion of
construction. The detail of call option is included in
note 35. The Group also entered into an agreement
in June 2011 with ZRBIEZHREBEEER AR EER
& "), an independent third party, to relocate the existing
residents and demolish the buildings on the Land. There
is approximately HK$29,604,000 (2010: nil) unsettled
contractual amount of the agreement included in the
other creditor as at 31 December 2011. The term of
repayment on this balance is repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has approximately
HK$28,043,000 (2010: HK$3,098,000) unsettled
construction cost related to the construction work for
both the additional berths and the oil storage depot,
which were commenced in late 2010.

29.

HtEMARERREGRA

R2011FE12A31H H b E [+ B&
REERTEYE=FENTHREZ
SERAARBT D ZRBEBREARE
16,143,000 7C(#8 % 719,412,000 %
TL)(2010 : T) » UBHFZBEWEMN R
% Ho 0 BB AN & B SE K 2 1,500 F 5
K WRBEARERTKET
o REBEZFBHNMFESS - A&
BRR2011F6 A BIE=F KB
EEREEEARAGEERIKE])
AV NEERTHWEBREERER
REHREF - B2 RBEEANELY
/29,604,000 7£(2010 « =) & AR
2011412 A31 B2 E M BN BRFRA ©
bt sr 2 BRI BIRER(EE -

R2011FE12A831H KN & B 5 B
2010 4 & 7 &R 38 hn VR 7 & B2 2/ &
MERRIBZRBEEEIKANA
28,043,00077C(2010 : 3,098,000/87T) °
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30. Borrowings 30. &R

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#TT FEL
Bank trust receipts loans RITIE IR B X 2,352,726 1,027,408
Bank trust receipts loans RITEFTBIREK
(pledged with RMB bank deposits) (A AR R 177770338 ) 4,011,321 1,962,641
Other bank loans HtniR1TE N 863,680 605,526
7,227,727 3,595,575
Analysed as: DA
Secured BHEA 4,150,878 2,230,790
Unsecured IR 3,076,849 1,364,785
7,227,727 3,595,575
Carrying amount repayable: BREEZAR AT EFEERE
Within one year —F R 6,782,885 3,341,329
More than one year, but not BRE—FETNZRME
exceeding two years 273,515 140,387
More than two years, but not BEMFEETZNAEE
exceeding five years 171,327 113,859
7,227,727 3,595,575
Less: Amounts due within one 8 AR EBER
year shown under current —FANEIH 2 RIE
liabilities (6,782,885) (3,341,329)
444,842 254,246
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30. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank trust receipts loans include approximately
HK$4,451,339,000 (2010: HK$773,615,000) fixed-rate
borrowings which are due within one year. They carry
average interest at 2.77% (2010: 2.68%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at 1-month LIBOR + 0.4% and HIBOR +
2% (2010: 1-month LIBOR + 0.6% and HIBOR + 2%) per
annum ranging from 0.59% to 6% (2010: 0.65% to 6%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2011, other bank loans of the
Group comprised of an amount of approximately
HK$545,220,000 (2010: HK$322,293,000) drawn under
term loan facilities which carry variable interest ranged
from 1.3% to 3.76% (2010: 2.05% to 3.89%) per
annum of which approximately HK$93,266,000 (2010:
HK$148,768,000) is secured by the bank deposits of
the Group and guaranteed by the Company and its
subsidiary. The remaining bank loans of approximately
HK$318,460,000 (2010: 283,233,000) are guaranteed
by the Company and its subsidiaries which carry fixed
interest ranged from 2.40% to 7.87% (2010: 4.37% to
5.885%) per annum.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in
currencies which are not the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

As at 31 December 2011
As at 31 December 2010

R2011 412 A 31 H
M201012 A 31 H

30. fE®(#E)

SR 1715 5T WK 18 Z 49 4,451,339,000
7 £(2010 : 773,615,000 7T ) B F
BEF R—FREH  FHFEANEE
2.77% (2010 : 2.68%) ° 82 NERITE X
BZEER  FHAERE—EAR GMBUERTT
FIZERE + 0.4% REBRITREERE +
2% (2010 : — @ A mBUERITRIZEHRB +
0.6% REBRITREFE + 2%) * NF
0.59% Z 6% (2010 : 0.65% £ 6%) °

R2011FE12A831H A&E B 2 E b
RITERBIE—EREERFHNEA1.3%
% 3.76% (2010 : 2.05% = 3.89%) 2 %
FAEFEZEHRERBERRY
545,220,000 7£(2010 : 322,293,000
BT ) ZFB o sk ASERT 0 %993,266,000
7 70(2010 : 148,768,000 7T ) LA 7K &=
ERITERERR TEARAR
ENBARER EHREFETERD
318,460,000;% 7t(2010 : 283,233,000
B EARB REMBARER  &F
RZENF2.40% & 7.87% (2010 : 4.37%
£5.885%) 2 EEFIEETE ©

AEBEZBFIAFHEBREEERIGEE
BZEEEE #IWT

RMB usD
AR® ]
HK$000 HK$’000
TETT TAETT
35,703 1,662,638
— 1,472,584
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31. Share Capital

31. &

Number
of shares Amount
BinE R k4]
HK$’000
FETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEO.10E T2 EimA
(2010: HK$0.10 each) (2010 : X 0.10/E7T)
Authorised share capital: EERA
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 20101 818 * 2010F &
2010 and 2011 2011412 A 31 H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: 2377 R KA :
At 1 January 2010 R2010%F1 A1H 1,155,853,374 115,586
Issue of shares due to placing LR E M TR (D
(Note) (Hta) 150,000,000 15,000
At 31 December 2010 and 2011 M2010F K% 2011412 A31 H 1,305,853,374 130,586
Note: On 5 November 2010, 150,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 HfaE - 2010411 A5H » 150,000,000

each were issued by way of placing at a placing price of
HK$1.78 per share. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with other shares in issue.

32. Share-Based Payment Transactions
Equity-settled share option scheme:
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special

General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option

Scheme”).

gl -
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HZ2011F 12431 HIFFEZE
32. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the
Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company,
may at their discretion grant options to participants to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with
the terms of the Option Scheme. The subscription price
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer for grant of options, which must be
a trading day; (i) the average closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer for grant of options; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue. Based on the 1,305,853,374 shares
(2010: 1,305,8583,374 shares) in issue as at 31 December
2011 and 32,582,284 options (2010: 32,582,284
options) outstanding under the Option Scheme, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
130,585,337 shares (2010: 130,585,337 shares).

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when
aggregated with shares issued and issuable (including
exercised and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the same
participant under the Option Scheme or any other share
option scheme within any 12 month period, must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to time.

32.

IR BERZZIHES(E)
HaREmRED : (2)

BRETEZEMARES  E8  #
EEkEFE2HEEREHEIHE R -
RIFERETE - ARFEZTS G
)£ B 25 4% )R] AR 5 B8 IR A = B 16 TR
BARRIRMD ZERE - REEEHRE
HET  ETAEER()IRERE TERE
ZBEBWEARSH)  BHEBIE
HREXRMBRZWME: (I BERD
RYBEREZHAIAERSE  BH%E
BT ARERARZ FHKRTIE
Rii)\ROEENERE RE) - RE
BT R A S BT E BT
EIE L 2 EREREITEE N TET
2B ARATEBBEEITR
7 Z210% ° & BR2011 12 A31H »
B2 % 17 B& 15 1,305,853,374 f% (2010 :
1,305,853,374 % ) & & A% % &t &) T 14
KRIT1E 2 32,582,284 1 & P #£ (2010 :
32,682,284 BE IR HE ) 5T & - BB B
BT & MR EAME R D 223
B ITER N T EIT ZRDBE
A HE 11538 130,585,337 f% (2010 :
130,585,337 %) °

2 EARE RS R AT B S () At B A
ERT2EEZEMERE(EED
TTERRITEZERERD FHBR
B)E R BBITRATEITZRMDEK
BaffEtER - RMEMI12EAREE2
HERR 2 BIREMS Rz &= B
B TREBTREETRNZ1% °
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32. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the
option for a certain period before exercising the option
save as determined by the board of directors of the
Company and provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the
option but in any event the option period should not go
beyond 10 years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the
Company.

Option Scheme

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options granted under the Option Scheme held by
employees (including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the two years ended 31 December 2011
and 2010:

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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RITEERENSKEBRE —RY
Lk

THEBAREARAEFENREER
R EE 2 EMEE EREMBER
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32. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued) 32. LIRInBERZIMHEZER(Z)
Option Scheme (Continued) BBk iERTEI(2)
Both 2011 and 2010 2011 R 2010 F

Number of

share options

outstanding at

1 January 2010,

31 December 2010

Exercise and

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period price 31 December 2011
®2010F181A8 »

20105 12A31HR

2011E128318M

RS RITEZERERE

2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,537
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
20065E5A15H 2006F5H16HE 2006E6A17HE
20066 A 16 H 2015%€ 128318

2006B 16 June 2006 - 17 June 2006 to 0.625 17,671,747
31 December 2015
20066 A 16 A = 20066 A17HE
201512831 H
32,582,284
Details of the share options held by the directors ERMEBBHESHA 2BREFEOT ¢

included in the above table are as follows:

Outstanding at

1 January 2010,

31 December 2010
and 31 December 2011

20101818 »
201012831 R
20115 12 A 31 HRMkKiT{E

1 January 2010 to 31 December 2011 201041 A1 HZE2011F 12 A31 H 22,641,926
There was no share option granted for the years ended HZE2011ERK2010FE12 A31 HILEE W E
31 December 2011 and 2010. RS RE o
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33. Deferred Taxation 33. EIERIA
The following are the major deferred liabilities (assets) FARBEEZRFE AEEDHER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during BEREEEEEE) REBEBHNT

the year and prior reporting year:

Accelerated Other
tax Tax intangible
depreciation losses assets
mERAHE REGR HEMEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET BT FB7T
At 1 January 2010 ®2010F1 /1A 15,131 (1,190) 4,056 17,997
(Credit) debit to profit/loss RENB =
for the year (AR) xR 1,484 (376) (955) 153
Exchange adjustments b 5 S 568 (44) 92 616
At 31 December 2010 201012 A31 H 17,183 (1,610) 3,193 18,766
(Credit) debit to profit/loss RENBEE
for the year (ABR) X BR 1,092 (100) (994) (2)
Exchange adjustments [ 1 R 882 (71) 105 916
At 31 December 2011 R2011412 A31H 19,157 (1,781) 2,304 19,680
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances T AN K2R 2 BERELH
for financial reporting purposes: DT

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Deferred tax assets RIETIBE B 1,781 1,610
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE (21,461) (20,376)
(19,680) (18,766)
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33. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$431,478,000 (2010: HK$292,549,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$6,327,000
(2010: HK$6,121,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to remaining balances of
approximately HK425,151,000 (2010: HK$286,428,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$10,322,000
(2010: HK$6,605,000) will be expired before year 2014
(2010: year 2013). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$39,304,000 (2010: HK$21,932,000) in respect of
accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$259,997,000
(81 December 2010: HK$205,903,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

33.

EIEWRIR ()

REMEAR - NEBEHF I HEE KRR
i ) 2 R B) A B TR B 18 40 & 431,478,000
7 70(2010 : 292,549,000/ 7T )° ©
3L #16,327,0007% (2010 : 6,121,000
BIL)ERELEREEEZ - AN B%
2% M R B LA TR R - B 4E B A
T 4 # #9425,151,000;8 75(2010 :
286,428,000 78 7T ) FERIEILFIIBE E ©
4710,322,0007% Jt(2010 : 6,605,000
I ) Z R FERTIBE 1B 15 1K 2014 F
(2010 : 20134 ) Ay HA ) o E fth 518 R
A 4EPR HA A8 o

REFREER - BEMESINEFR - &
S B A ] E R 2= EE%) 39,304,000 7
7£(2010 : 21,932,000 7T ) © B A K
AR A AR EREUEE AR
IR M R IR A 2 AT REIETR A« B
4 5% ] FO B B = SR R R E A R TR

BIEFRREMERE - B20084F1H1H
#e - AR BB B A B TR ER Z % A T =R
2B EBMNIER o AEBIETLE
AAFBEWEBARZ 2 AN ZEE
Z%8259,997,000 %87t (20104F 12 A 31
B : 205,908,000 T )i ir & B S sk
NEHRIEETRIEEE L ARASE
AIEH O TR ERE 2R BT
R REN G AT B R B D -
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34. Obligation for Put Option to Non-controlling

Shareholder of a Subsidiary

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 July 2007 (the
“Agreement”) entered between a wholly owned
subsidiary, Qingxin NewOcean Transportation Company
Limited (“Qingxin NewOcean”) and the non-controlling
shareholder of BEMMEZEMABRAA("EZE") (“NCS”),
NCS granted a call option (“Call Options”) to Qingxin
NewOcean to acquire the 10% equity interest from NCS
at a consideration of approximately RMB 4,500,000
for the period from 1 July 2007 to 30 June 2009. In
addition, Qingxin NewOcean has granted a put option to
NCS to sell the 10% equity interest to Qingxin NewOcean
at a consideration of approximately HK$5,550,000
(equivalent to RMB 4,500,000 translated at year end
exchange rate) from the period from 1 July 2009 to 31
July 2009 (“Put Option”). Qingxin NewOcean exercised
the Call Option on 30 June 2009 and proposed to settle
the consideration by the other receivables due from
NCS. NCS did not agree the settlement arrangement and
requested for cash settlement of RMB4,500,000. The
case was referred to the court, a final judgement of the
court in the PRC was issued on 17 January 2011. Based
on the court judgement, Qingxin Newocean has to settle
the consideration of RMB4,500,000 by cash and pay a
compensation of approximately RMB1,670,000 to NCS.
Up to the date of this report the required settlement has
not been made by Qingxin NewOcean. The obligation
of the Put Option was recorded as current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2011 and 2010. In addition, the provision
of compensation was included in other creditors and
accrued charges as at 31 December 2011. As at the
date of this report, the transaction is not yet completed.
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35. Acquisition of Leasehold Land Through 35. FBBMAMBAFTIBESE L1

Purchase of Subsidiary

On 15 June 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase contract with two independent vendors, #5
and BILEEAR A A, to acquire 100% equity interest
of IKNEMKEZZERAR("EERK/E") at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB80,225,000
(equivalent to HK$96,468,000) and grant a call option to
the vendors. Details of the call option are set out in the
note below. The acquisition was completed on 30 June
2011 and ZK/EAK/E has not yet commenced business at
the date of acquisition. The acquisition is accounted for
as acquisition of the leasehold land and the associated

R2011FE6HA15H - ANEBEFK L
BIYEBEFREEKILEBEGRAAE]
VEEAR G WEKETKEEZES A
RARI[ZREBHRE ) 22 2iEs &
REH A AR 80,225,000 T &
7 96,468,000 70) KA B A % 1 R
T o REEWE Z FFIBEA T CHIE - B8
ER2011FE6 A30H MK - MR UKE
HE  BKEREHARARER - WEA
RAKBHAET W RKENREZIEEE

Eé:o

liabilities of KGR E .

HK$°000
FETT
Net assets acquired I8 FEE

The Land Z b 165,628
Other payables H b fE < 5038 (49,748)
Total consideration BRE 115,880

Satisfied by AR %I 5 = A+
Cash consideration paid (Note a) ENBEeREHFa) 96,468
Call option (Note b) REERE (M5t b) 19,412
Total consideration BRE 115,880
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EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

35. Acquisition of Leasehold Land Through
Purchase of Subsidiary (Continued)

36.

Note:

(a)

The Group paid cash consideration of approximately
HK$96,468,000 to the vendors as at 31 December 2011.
The Group will develop half of the Land to construct
a property for owner-occupied purpose and half for
properties for sale.

On 15 June 2011, the Group entered into a supplemental
agreement with #x5 to grant the call option to &5 to
acquire 1,500 square meters of the properties located on
the Land to be completed by the Group at a maximum
price of RMB15,000 per square meter. The call option
is exercisable upon the completion of the construction.
The fair value of the call option is determined by, Norton
Appraisals Limited, an independent valuation company,
and the amount of approximately HK$19,412,000 is
included in other creditors and accrued charges in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011. The call option was measured at fair
value on initial recognition. The model adopted for the
measurement of the call option was Black-Scholes model.
The key input for the Black-Scholes model are: market
value of RMB37,500,000 for the 1,500 square meters
of the completed properties, volatility of 3.47% and risk
free rate of 3.49% per annum. Based on the contractual
terms, the call option requires physical delivery of the
underlying assets (properties located on the Land) only
and is not readily convertible to cash. The directors
consider the call option is not within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”
and accordingly, the call option is subsequently measured
at cost.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2010

On 28 February 2010, the Group acquired a 100%
equity interest in RAAMBBR AR R AM") from
an independent third party for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$6,065,000. 3 75/ )#H operates a LPG retall
network in Macau. This acquisition has been accounted for
using the acquisition method of accounting. The amount
of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
approximately HK$5,523,000. The main reason for the
acquisition of B3 A is to expand the LPG retail and
wholesales operations to Macau.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

35 FAMAMBLFWBEAR L1t

(%)
wpat -

(@ M2011F12A8318 ' AEBEERE
7 S IR £ K {8 4996,468,000 7 TT ©
REBEBZ LMW —FERIAERE—
BEHEXTAAME  —FRERER
FEME -

(b) M2011FE6H15H AEBEEKS
RIS WMARS R REE
Nz mEREFE R RKRARE 15,000
TCUR BB L 1A 5% = 3h I 15 F AN 52 [ 2 AK
21,500 5 KWE - REBEATRE
BEKBITE - REEZAFERE
VHEEAREHBEBETEERADA
B F - mR2011E128318 0 4
19,412,000 %8 7T 2 5K B B &1 A E b &
NERREFERANA - REERE
EREEAFENE st ERBEHEM
FAZEXNBEHEN - 2HREA 2
TEHAEKIES 1,500F 5 KEK
Y% 2 mE AR 37,500,0007T &
18 3.47% K 45 [B. f 5F 3£ 3.49% ° 1R IR
ARG REEEATERXFE
MEERZ T Ez2ME) BTEE
BRI AES EFERARBRY
TEBRESSTERAFEIRB T
B BERAKEIZSHEAN - Bt R
FEEEBIRAAGTE -

36. U AERE 2 F

#E2010F12A31HIEFE

MR2010F2H28H » &K & A 4
6,065,000 8 T2 HEREBERBELE =
HWERAABAERAR (R AHM]D)
2 100% A% #E o B 5 A MR P E L —
BIERZEERSE - ZBEWEEHEE KA
WESHAAR HAZKESEBEELZ
B4 55,523,000 c WEER 54
MZEEZERASHRRIEREE Mt
HEREHPY o
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 36. WEBMEBLAT(£Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued) HE2010FE 12831 BILEE(Z)
The net assets acquired in the transaction and the RGN FEERAIEEACZT
goodwill arising are as follows: ET

Assets and
liabilities
recognised

at the date of

acquisition
U RS B RATERE
ZEERAR
HK$’000
F&T
Net assets acquired: FRfS/FEE :
Property, plant and equipment M - R REE 671
Inventories EE 783
Trade debtors FEUE 5 BR 5K 161
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HEabpURERFR « & NI FIE 45
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB MRS 107
Trade creditors FERE S8R (61)
Other creditors and accrued charges HEERR N EREA (1,164)
542
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EE 2 e 5,523
Total consideration BARE
Satisfied by cash PAIR & 2 A5 6,065
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition W EE A 2 TR 7 SRR
Cash consideration paid BEfREERE (6,065)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrezRe kB eERIEER 107
(5,958)
Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately #360,000B TR W EB B AT BIE
HK$60,000 was excluded from the cost of acquisition RUEEK AR - R FEAERBITEX
and was recognised as an administrative expense in the i o
year.
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued)

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade receivables and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments) with a fair value of approximately
HK$206,000 had gross contractual amounts of
approximately HK$206,000. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected is nil.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities were approximately equal to
their fair value as at the acquisition date. The goodwill
arising on the acquisition was attributable to the
anticipated profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products in the new markets and the anticipated future
operating synergies, revenue growth and future market
development from the combination. 3 5 & Jf contributed
approximately HK$6,893,000 to the Group’s revenue and
incurred a loss of approximately HK$329,000 during the
period between the date of acquisition and year ended
31 December 2010 respectively.

Had the acquisition of ¥ J7 A i been effected at 1
January 2010, the revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010 would have been increased
by approximately HK$1,599,000 to approximately
HK$8,479,314,000, and the profit for the period would
have been decreased by approximately HK$164,000
to approximately HK$137,220,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed at 1
January 2010, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

36.

I BB AR (&)
#E2010FE12A 31 HILEE(Z)

ez ERRB(EBEERE SER
MEAEUWERR - e MIENFIE) B
#9206,000/8 TC 2 R FERERLL &5
#4) /206,000 70 - RUKER - AR
BEMEMBAR S REZRERA

=<

Hit BN EAELNEEEE A T
BRELIA o

EERBEERABNEREEEREEK
BHNATERBES - WEFREELZ
EEAEERETMSE D HAEEE R
TEH RN MEHETEREREEEE
ZHEmE - WA R K ARRT S %
B AR ER RE E2010F 12 A
S1IHLEFE BEHFAHIRARER
2 W A B 3 496,893,000 5 7T 2 8% 15 49
329,000 & TR ET1E ©

fig W BE 3R 5 A B R 201041 A1 8 #
17 BIREBEZ=2010F12 A31 B It
FEZ WAL 1,599,000 T =
478,479,314,00078 7T * B ;@ A A &
A 2 #1164,000 7% 7T £ %137,220,000
BT BEERMEIERBRASR T %
RAEWER2010F1 A1 85K @ &N&E
EEREER WA RGBS  NE
BIEAREERTEN -
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37. Available for Sales Investments and Entrusted
Loan

Pursuant to the framework agreement dated 21 October
2010 (the “Agreement”), certain subsidiaries of the
Group entered into the following transactions with two
independent third parties (the “Transactions”):

A. A wholly owned subsidiary, #/&82R(FE)GREA
B FEER(RE)") agreed with BMZREMRE
[RA&] to acquire 5% registered capital of Hf#raE
JR at a consideration of RMB 3,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$ 3,701,000). B #8508 is a
privately owned entity incorporated in the PRC
that operates 17 LPG stations in Guangzhou. The
acquisition was completed on 23 December 2010
and the 5% registered capital of B#T8E/R has been
classified as an available for sale investment in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010. The
investment is stated at cost less impairment, if any.

B. A wholly owned subsidiary, ¥/ A8 B 1% EH R A 7
("“BBEFHRE") agreed to provide an entrusted loan
of RMB 580,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$681,607,000 as at 31 December 2010) to ¥k
BHHEBMEERARCHEAMKE") (the “Entrusted
Loan”). BE@fH75 owned 95% of the registered capital
of Bt¥rse/R. Based on the terms set out in the
Agreement, the Entrusted Loan is repayable on
23 December 2011 with total interest of HK$
120,000,000 payable at maturity. The Entrusted
Loan is pledged by 95% registered capital of F#7
gEJR. On the same date, ELBMS also issued a
call option to & = /¥ #% & which allows & B /¥ & &
to acquire the 95% registered capital of Bf#TaE)R
(the “Call Option”). The exercise period of the Call
Option is from 23 December 2011 to 22 January
2012. The details of the Call Option are set out in
note 44(c)(i). There are several conditions set out in
the Agreement to be fulfilled by FE@MTE before B
B F® & will consider to exercise the Call Option,
including i) a special audit on B #8508, i) #E @
M7 to pay up all the interests in respect of the
Entrusted Loan, iii) all required operating licenses
of FEEMAS are still effective (together referred to
as the “conditions”) etc. Even if these conditions
are all met, the exercise of the Call Option is at the
discretion of B FIRE .

37. THHERBRBERMR

B 2010510 A 21 BE] 3 2 E2R 5%
(Tl  AEEZzETHEB QR &
MEBYLFE=FETUTRS([ZER
1) :

A Z2EKBRAFEBERFEH)E
RAR[#F/EER(PR)|)EE
INFREMBBERRAGRE » AR
B A R # 3,000,000 7T (B ER A
3,701,000 7% 7T ) U B B8t 37 g2 R 5%
it & &K 25% o Bt #aE R T B
BEMRZZ2AAEEEE - B
BN A & 17 8 R 1L |0 & e
W BE =18 A 2010F 12 A 23 H =&
X BT EERAMERZ5%E
MR2011 412 A 31 H X 20104 12
R81AZEFEBEMRAERDES
AR ERE - ZIERERKAN
BSRE (AN ) B8R -

B. 2BNBRARMEEEFKESR
RAR(BEEFEEDREM
KEMEBRMBEAER QA
BMEDREZTERARE
580,000,000 7c (7R 2010F 12 A
31 B R 49681,607,0005# 7T )
([BEEER]) - EBRMEHEH
e REMEAR 295% ° RIFZ
WEAMEZIER ZEERER
201112 A 23 B E & - © 3 &5
BF FE 5 2 I B 4888 /4 120,000,000
BT o R ERABIFEREME
KZI5%IEHEIR - R H - FEBM
BMAE B FRER L RIEE =
BEFRE et R E
K2Z295% ([REHE]) - RIBHEZ
ITEHBE2011FE12 A28 H &
201241 H22H Ik - REREZF
BEHAW T 44()() - ZWEHE T
BFREEEITEREERT AN
TEREKZE T IR - B35 L
FrebREITIERIEZ ¢ i) BT
SREXERZEZHBFE ;i) B
Mz — T E TR B NARE
ME(FEIEM 1) o BN _E a5
HaEEN - BEFRERIER
EBITIERERE o
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37. Available for Sales Investments and Entrusted
Loan (Continued)

(Continued)

The Entrusted Loan has been split into two portions
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement”. (The loan receivable is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.)
The Entrusted Loan is classified at initial recognition
as a loan receivable on 23 December 2010 at
approximately HK$644,423,000 with effective
interest rate at 25.5% per annum. The remaining
amount represented a Call Option of approximately
HK$45,715,000 (2010: HK$43,554,000) which is
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2010, in the opinion of the directors, the
Entrusted Loan would be recovered within the next
twelve months and therefore classified as current
assets. As at 31 December 2011, the Entrusted
Loan was classified as non-current asset because
the directors consider it is probable that the Group
will exercise the Call Option to acquire Bt#raE)R and
the fund generated from repayments of Entrusted
Loan would be used to settle the consideration
and other required cash outflow related to the
acquisition.

On 20 December 2011, B E 1% & and @AM
7% entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) for several revised
procedures in relation to the completion of the
potential acquisition. Pursuant to the Supplemental
Agreement, BE@ M7 agreed to repay the whole
amount of Entrusted Loan and the revised deposit to
be paid by B&EF&E to @M is RMB57,000,000.
In the opinion of directors, the terms set out in
Supplemental Agreement has no significant impact to
the valuation of the Call Option.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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37. AHHERBREERR(E)

(%)

L EFBER ST EAF39
RIPHETE: BREAE]IH B
MEBH - (BRERFBERF S
EAE AT R o) ZREE RN
20104 12 A 23 H 4] # #& 2 B LA
BREMER25% D HEEREKE
A 644,423,000 T ° REEFER
% # 4945,715,00078 7£(2010 :
43,554,000 7T) * TIR 2R
%2 B AN A ] B & BB B B 18 5T
£ - R2010F12A31H &%
RE - ZRERERART @A
WkE MO BEERBEE - B
201112 A31H ZEEE R
PEIERBDEE RAAEERA
NG B A B 17 {55 AR A AR LA B Bt el
REMEERAERMEAZES
18 B A S ST Uk B 2 AR (B R A
FTEREme -

R2011 12 5208 * AEFKRE
SR BTSSR RO B IR S 2 2 1H
CHRE S VA AR i ]
&) - BEMTHE - EERER
EEBZAERZENRE AR
IR E N TREBATS 2 SIE R TR
% A AR 57,000,000 > E=E
RAE I TR SR R
BREGEEBREATE -
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37. Available for Sales Investments and Entrusted 37. MHHERIRBIEEHRE)
Loan (Continued)

(Continued)

On 21 December 2011, A B ¥ & paid @AM
7% the deposit of RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$69,967,000) and the amount
was included in other assets and classified as
non-current assets as at 31 December 2011.
On 29 December 2011, Af i@ #f 7% partly repaid
HK$71,008,000 for the Entrusted Loan and further
HK$235,704,000 was paid by BEEi#E subsequent to
the end of the reporting period. In January 2012, &
E R E exercised the Call Option to acquire the
95% equity interest of BiFTaEJR . The acquisition has
completed and the Group has appointed directors
to BE#FreEJR within the same month.

(&
MN2011FE12 21 B - ABFRE
MEBMEXHEE ARK
57,000,000 7t (1855 7447 69,967,000
BIT) MR2011FE12 8318
ZREGAHEMEEL DB AIE
B E E- R2011F12 29
H HEBMBEPHEEEZRTE
X 271,008,000 T m H &
235,704,000 L E R 23R AR E
HEEBY - KR2012F18 &
B ETE R AU BB T A
TR 2 95% % #E o WBE B SEAK i A
EEERR A AZEES AR

BEIR o
38. Contingent Liabilities 38. BRAMRK

A 2011 F K2010F12 A31H » AN &
B EERHKARBE -

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Annual Report 2011 —Z——F £ 153




154

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

39. Lease Commitments 39. HE&IE

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

FREESEEA

REBHR - AKERBE A HHELE
MHARNzAREIAETH - 218
BT

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#TT FEL

Within one year —FR 7,242 7,838
In the second to fifth year inclusive S _ZRFEAN(BEFEEEME) 7,132 10,631
Over five years BiBAF 2,175 2,203
16,549 20,672

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals
payable by the Group for office premises. As at 31
December 2011, rentals are fixed for an average of 4
years (2010: 4 years).

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

REHERBN T BEAEEHEREA
EYEENZEE - 72011412 A 31
B eETEHFHE4F(2010: 4
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BE2011F12A31 AILFE
40. Other Commitments 40. H iz
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Capital expenditure contracted W RIATIER 2 BET4
for but not provided in the BRRERE V% HR <
consolidated financial statements Bz ERRXL
in respect of:
Purchase of gas plant and B E RS RS
machinery 85,956 130,563
41. Retirement Benefits Plans 41. BH&iEFIEHE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme REBAERBAZE2BEERREER
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets Bt EESE - ZtEcBEER
of the schemes are held separately from those of the REBEESFHFTE  BHELEANES
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group ERES - NREE RN BBRER 2 54
and each employee employed in Hong Kong are required EEEABRAKREEFHEWAZS5%EL
to make a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly HE - FAERER AT A 1,000 7T
relevant income with a maximum monthly contribution of
HK$1,000 per person.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC AEBERFRANEBARZEELMFE
are members of state-managed retirement benefit BT ERE 2 RIKEREE - ZZHBA
schemes operated by the PRC government. The AR EZR AR REN T BIATER A Z
subsidiaries are required to contribute fixed percentage [ 7 L IR o AN &= B TR IR AR I 5t &
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to ZE—EERIEREEMHK -

fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions.
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42. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

42. MEANLZS

FRASERBEATETTIIR
5

2011 2010

Sales to a jointly controlled entity M—RERZEFIEEHE
Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, XffF2& 7S

Neo (Note) (&)

HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FETT
2,947 11,304
848 660

Note: Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the group and also the
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu
Hung is the executive director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and note 25, there were no
other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the year.

On 16 May 2010, Sound Management Services Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
an office tenancy agreement with Shum Ho, Neo for
the use of office premises provided by Shum Ho, Neo
located on 20th Floor, Times Tower, 393 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$55,000 per calendar month
for a period of one year commencing on 16 May 2010.
On 16 May 2011, the agreement was renewed for one
year to 15 May 2012 at HK$80,000 per calendar month
with the same terms.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

Bt AREB 2 BB AT DI R E /N
ZF ZOMBRRBZHTES -

BRIAERHIGE25 IR EESN - FRHE
PEALTYERMERNRS » RFERE
IRARA BIR LR 2 ERAER

R2010F5 168 » A Ral2Z= &K
BREFEERRGER AR ESERT
SIAZEFL - LA AT 55,0000 A
BIEM N B S E T H2EE 393 AR
FL20ZMAEYE - HIH 2010
F5H168 BB B — F - R20114F5
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42. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REALESH(E)
FEEEARZEM

FRNESRAMEFEEEAB Z2FB0M
™

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Short-term benefits 55 BAAE A 7,048 9,702
Contribution to retirement benefits 3R {K4@ 5T &I 4 5%

schemes 84 101

7,132 9,803

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

EEREBRTRABZFMAFIES
SRBEARRRTEEBEET -
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43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 43. FATFZEERBATFEE
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 A QA R20114F 22010612 A31 H
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: ZEEMBARGFHEOT ¢

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
HRRI &R/ BRTRBE FLRAMBERT/
HEARRR BEHE FrisiRia %R 2 94301 ¢ BEMEFEELH FERH
2011 2010
BEAF("BFY") PRC * Registered RMB5,000,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
HE capital AR 5,000,00070 HERDERILR
&R
NewOcean Resources Singapore Ordinary SGD100 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. b LR 100 31 M3 7T HERDHERILR
Shenzhen Baorun Liquefield PRC * Registered RMB15,000,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
Petroleum Gas Company i - capital AEK#15,000,0007C HERMERILR
Limited TMER
AITERRRERAF
Sound Hong Kong Limited British Virgin Ordinary USD1 100 100 Investment holding
MBEAERAT Islands (‘BVI")  E@Mk 1% REAR
EBRAS
([EBRES])
Sound Agents Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
MEREAERAHF BE LER 28T and electronic products
HERNBRILARETER
Sound Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
MEEXERAA i Lk 28T products
BEEEfEm
Sound Management Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Providing management
Limited & Lk 2B services to group
MEERRBERAR companies

MEERAREEERE
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43. FLRFZEEMBLTIFHR &)

43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELRER

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation
BRI &R/
BEME

Class of
share held

Fi i i 17 2 B

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
BRTRERE

2 94301t

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
FARRBERT/
BEREFEELA

2011 2010

Principal activities

ERRE

Sound Technologies Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
MERRAERAR i Ll 28T products
BEETER
Qingxin Yong Long Gas and PRC * Registered RMB4,280,000 72 72 Sale and distribution of LPG
Chemical Company Limited & * capital AR 4,280,00070 HERMHERILR
(*Yong Long’) (Note a) HMEA
B EAEMBRAT
(Ikal)Hzta)
RS RERER A PRC * Registered HK$6,600,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
e’ capital 6,600,000 77T FERMWRILR
HER
ERaEEmaER A PRC * Registered HK$1,400,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
e capital 1,400,000 7 RERMMERILR
HER
BMNERREERAT PRC * Registered HK$1,600,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
HE ¢ capital 1,600,000 7% HERDHERILR
HER
BMTERRARLA PRC * Registered RMB500,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
([BMHFE]) (Notefizzh)  mEL* capital AR500,0007 HERDHRILR
HER
EREERRARLA PRC * Registered RMB500,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
([BR#E]) (Noteffitc)  HE* capital AR500,0007 HERDHRILR
HMER
e (5E) PRC f Registered USD29,150,000 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
hEf capital 29,150,000% 7 RERDHERIER
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43. FLRFZEEMBLTIHER &)

43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
M iR BETREE SLRRBEET/
HEARER EEME PR nER B/ HERES EMESMELH FERE
2011 2010
BE PRC * Registered RMB7,755,100 81 81 Sale and distribution of LPG
HE capital ARH7,755,1007C HERDHERILR
HMER
BT ABRAR PRC * Registered RMB2,000,000 81 81 Sale and distribution of LPG
HE - capital AR 2,000,0007C HERDHRIR
HMHER
EEGHERRARAR PRC * Registered RMB990,000 90 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
i - capital AE#990,0007 HERAMERILR
HMER
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
Offshore Limited ! LRk 100,000 and electronic products
BE AR RE R AR AR 100,000:2F37C HERDHRILRREFER
NewOcean (Shenzhen) Energy BV Ordinary USS$1 100 100  Investment Holding
Investment Limited RERZE LBk 5 REER
ORI R R A BRA R
HBER(PE) PRC * Registered US$67,670,000 0 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
e capital 67,670,000% 7 HERDHRILR
NewOcean Development Limited  BVI Ordinary US$50,000 100 100  Investment Holding
MERRARLA G LRk 50,000% 7 RAER
Best Resources Base Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 90 90 Investment Holding
EEFRAT EERLE LR 50,000 RERR
(Noteiz d)

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZ2011F 12431 HILFE

43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Rise Smart Industrial Limited

BREXARLA

BEFRA

Kam=BRRERAR"

RAAH

HBS

NewOcean Energy (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

MaaR (B BRAA
(Notefifize)

NEDRE
2EINEDRE

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation
M iEm,
EEHE

Hong Kong
&R

PRC *
e

PRC *
E

Macao

P

PRC *
e

Hong Kong
BB

Domestic — invested enterprises

Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

Class of
share held

B B 4 46

Ordinary
i

Registered
capital
AR

Registered
capital

EMER

Ordinary
Al

Registered
capital

At EA

Ordinary
LR

43. FRFZEEMBLFFHSE#Z)

Issued and

fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
ERTREME
k% BREF

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

US$30,000,000
30,000,000 ¢

RMBS5,015,700
ARH5,015,70070

Macao dollar
3,300,000
3,300,00058

US$33,000,000
33,000,000% 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
FARMKERT/
EMESEELH

2011 2010

90 90

100 100

90 90
90 90
90 90

68 100

Annual Report 2011

Principal activities

FERE

Providing management
services to group
companies

RSB AR EE R R
Investment holding, sale and
distribution of LPG
REER - BERDERILA
Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDHRILR

Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDHRILR

Property development

NEER

Investment holding

RERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

43. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to an agreement entered between BFY and
the non-controlling shareholder of Yong Long, (“PRC
Investor”), the operation of Yong Long was sub-contracted
to BFY with a sub-contracting period of 5 years. The PRC
Investor was entitled to a fixed sum of sub-contracting fee
payable of RMB200,000 (2010: RMB200,000) per year by
BFY. BFY entitled to 100% of the results of Yong Long
during the subcontracting period.

1BINFEE is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Z¥EJt and 27N who
held the interest in #&/J11#7/& of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in#&JN#1& is indirectly held by the
Company.

EB#E is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by &4 and 2N who
held the interest in Z1&#1/8 of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in Z#&#1& is indirectly held by the
Company.

In June 2010, the Group disposed of 10% of its equity
interest in Best Resources Base Limited, reducing its
controlling interest to 90%.

In September 2011, the Group disposed of 32% of its
equity interest in NewOcean Energy (Hong Kong) Company
Limited, reducing its controlling interest to 68%. The
proceeds on disposal was HK$19,497,000. A deposit of
HK$9,402,000 was received in 2010 and the remaining
amount of HK$10,095,000 was received in 2011.

Except Sound Hong Kong Limited which is owned
directly by the Company, the above principal subsidiaries
are owned indirectly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T

43. FLRTFZEEMBLTIER &)

Mt -
@

RIEE & ¥ Mok EEFEE SRR R ([
WEEDE 2 HHE KEZEBD
SNAEREF - INIERASF o REIR
EEAERIE B FEM 2 EEIH
&R EF AR 200,0007t(2010 : A
R #¥200,0007T) - RINHIEARE - B &
FERRA KEE 100% 2 %48 ©

PN 37545 48 el 2 1 B BN S AT S
CERBREMALAMERSE - S
17T % 21/N 49 5 A BN 08 20% 4
3 o FBINFEH T 2 42 A A R
A -

ERMEERHRSFHRBINFETL
ZERBERAERRRARERE - =
FAHRB N FEI5H EEIIE20% 2
me BRAERT 2SR ARAHE
BRE e

R201056 H  AEEHEZEAFR
RNEZ10% B AE - < E AR B HE 2R HUR
£90% °

R2011F9R ' AEBEEFTER
(BB)ERLAAZ232%kiE @ <H
o0 | 4 25 MR = 68% o & 2 TS K
18 /£19,497,0007% JT ° 9,402,000/8
L2 E B MN20105F Y E » &R 58
10,095,000 8 7T E 74 2011 FULER »

REEEAERARARANERRES
SN+ bt BHE A F A A FR
B o

BB R BN F R EF RS E
ERAREREFES

LRI EERRIEFEAREXE
FEEZARAMBAR - EERRT
HEMKBAR ZEHEBNITR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZEZ2011F 1231 HiIFF/E
44. Derivative Financial Instruments 44, FTEMBEIR

Derivatives financial

instruments
TTEMBIA
Assets Liabilities
g5E afa
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREIT FAET
2011
Current mEh
Foreign currency forward INER BB S 4Y
contracts 28,815 14,700
Cross currency interest rate RYXEEFERIEHE L
swaps contracts - 69,677
Interest rate swaps contracts FE=HE 4 - 22,350
28,815 106,727
Non-current FE T &
Call Option REEE 45,715 —
2010
Current mEh
Foreign currency forward INECSR RS )
contracts 267 24,858
Cross currency interest rate RN EBFRIFEHE L
swaps contracts - 53,877
Interest rate swaps contracts M ZEFH 5 49 202 9,437
Call Option RAEE 43,554 —
44,023 88,172
Annual Report 2011 =—Z——FF3f 163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZ2011F 12431 HIFFEZE
44. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 44. GTEMBEIR(Z)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PITHEMBTAZ FZERIBARNT

summarised as follows:

A. Foreign currency forward contracts-net A. HNEEHEN — RHFHE
settlement
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
ZReH b c) Ex
2011
Buy USD371,225,857 16 March 2012 to 20 September 2013 RMB/USD6.21 to RMB/USD6.65

(approximate to
RMB2,361,759,000)

B A\ 371,225,857 %7 201243 A16 HE 201349 A 20 H 6.21 AR¥E /FErE6.65 AR /ET
(A AR 2,361,759,000
)

2010

Buy USD216,681,160 6 January 2011 to 25 February 2013 RMB/USD6.29 to RMB/USD6.77

(approximate to
RMB1,420,093,000)

B A 216,681,160 E7T 20111 A6HZE2013E2 A25H 6.20 A\R¥E /ETZE6.77T ARE /ETT
(4 AR 1,420,093,000

T)

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ME R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BZ2011F 12431 HILFE

44. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

B. Cross currency interest rate swaps contracts/
interest rate swaps contracts- net settlement

Notional amount

1 34 ]

2011

USD445,694,877
(approximate to
RMB3,008,576,000)

445,694,877 =L (KH AR
3,008,576,0007T)

2010

USD208,696,680
(approximate to
RMB1,352,521,000)

208,696,680 F 7T (K AR
1,352,521,0007%)

C. Call Option

Period

HR

28 January 2012 to 28 January 2015

201241 A28 HZE 201541 H28 H

4 February 2012 to 19 February 2014

2012562 H4HZE2014%2 H19H

44.

R @S 75 issued a Call Option to B E & which
allows A& FH®RE to acquire the 95% registered
capital of B #7 £ JR. The exercise price of the
Call Option is RMB580,000,000 subjected to
adjustments and the exercise period of the Call
Option is from 23 December 2011 to 22 January
2012. The details of the Call Option are set out in
note 37. As at 31 December 2011, the Call Option
was classified as non-current asset because the
directors consider it is probable that the Group will
exercise the Call Option and acquire 95% registered
capital of BEFTREIR .

TTEMBIRE)

B. RRNAWFFAMEH FIEHN
BN -RBHBN

Exchange rates/interest rates

EE %

Floating rate ranging from one month
LIBOR to one month LIBOR + 3.04%
per annum to fixed rate ranging from
0.15% to 3.68% per annum

RMB/USD6.55 to RMB/USD6.82

FREANENT—EARERITRERS
Z—ARAMBBITRERS +3.04% EE
EFEFENF0.15% £ 3.68%

6.55 AR¥E /ETE6.82 ARY
ETT

Floating rate ranging from one month
LIBOR + 0.04% to one month LIBOR +
3.04% per annum to fixed rate ranging
from 0.15% to 3.02% per annum

RMB/USD6.34 to RMB/USD6.82

FREFNENT—EARIEERITRE
HE+0.04% Z— AR REERITRAE
B +3.04% ZEEFHENF0.156%
£3.02%

6.34 AR¥ " ETE6.82 ARE ETT

C. eha

HBEWEREEFRERIRE
¥ REE AR AR ET R R
EMEARZI5% - REEZITE
84 AR % 580,000,000 7T * 1M
BT A2011F12 A 23
HZE20124%1H22H - REEZ
=518 B R K 5E37 © 2011412
A31H  REESERIERBE
E RRREERANEEET
fFREEHE R W B B FT AL TR 2 95%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
EZE2011F 12831 HIFFE

45. Event After The Reporting Period 45. ERPEER

In January 2012, BE/F#& & exercised the Call Option
to acquire the 95% equity interest of B 7§28 . The
acquisition has completed and the Group has appointed
directors to EfHT4EJR within the same month. The details
of the term of the acquisition are set out in note 37. The
acquisition will be accounted for using the acquisition
method of accounting. The final consideration of the
acquisition is subjected to the completion audited
financial statement to be issued by the independent
auditor. The Company has commenced considering the
fair value of the net assets acquired in this transaction
but is not yet in a position to disclose the finalised
financial information of the acquisition.

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #EsEREBER AT

R2012F1 A BEFARETERERE
VAUG BB Bt B BE IR 2 95% AR - BB E 78
RmAKEERR A AR EES AR
FTREIR » W IR 2 S IR BN MIEE 37 -
WESKBWBEHEARK - WEZR
ARAE SRR I8 S A% B T8 2 SE AR AL
BERPBHREK - ARFEHBEZE B
SEFEEZ A TE  HERRERE
WiE 2 R TEER -



Financial Summary

MM E

Results

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31HLEEE

2008 2009 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 3,800,225 6,158,614 6,483,119 8,477,715 10,116,643
Profit before taxation BR % A1 g ) 52,559 54,122 155,093 155,451 332,944
Taxation charge RS (2,105) (1,211) (42,642) (18,067) (29,915)
Profit for the year FNEF 50,454 52,911 112,451 137,384 303,029
Attributable to: g
Equity holders of the VNG
Company HHA 50,454 52,911 112,451 136,647 306,159
Non-controlling interests TS = = = 737 (3,130)
50,454 52,911 112,451 137,384 303,029
Earnings per share FRREF
Basic (in HK cents) AR B 9.52 8.48 11.53 11.59 23.45
Diluted (in HK cents) wE EW) 9.49 8.48 11.53 11.42 23.09
Annual Report 2011 =T ——F &£
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Financial Summary
B2

Assets and Liabilities SERAR
At 31 December
#®12A31H
2009
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 2,319,632 2,700,263 4,226,442 5,799,599 10,622,135
Total liabilities mEE (1,795,689) (1,982,655) (3,210,225) (4,321,008) = (8,744,600)
523,843 717,608 1,016,217 1,478,591 1,847,535
Equity attributable to equity A7) Z R
holders of the Company BAE AELER 513,130 716,077 1,014,690 1,468,708 = 1,823,754
Non-controlling interests JEFR | RE2S 10,713 1,531 1,527 9,883 23,781
523,843 717,608 1,016,217 1,478,591 1,847,535

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #i8EREBEBR A T
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